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CORPORATE INFORMATION
KFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

9th Floor, Block C

No. 8 Kai Tai Da Road

Huang Pu District, Guangzhou City
Guangzhou 510700

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza I
10 Cheung Yue Street
Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court
Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG, Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAW

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank

China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd.
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MERE

Financial highlights
Revenue

Gross profit

(Loss)/profit from operation
(Loss)/profit for the year
EBITDA

(Loss)/earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Dividend per share (HK cents)

— Interim dividend
— Final dividend
— Total dividend

Profitability ratios
Gross profit margin
Operating margin

Net profit margin
Return on total assets!"
Return on equity®

Liquidity ratios

Current ratio

Average inventory turnover
days®

Average trade and bills

receivables turnover days®

Average trade and bills
payables turnover days®

Capital ratio
Interest coverage ratio®

Net debt to equity ratio®”

Gearing ratio®
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2022
—E__F
RMB’000
ARET T

1,185,049
506,994
(56,072)
(75,235)
6,054

(12.73)
(12.73)

1.0

42.8%
N/ATER
N/ATER
N/ATER
N/ATER

1.83

246

171

228
N/ATER
4.3%

20.4%

2021
—E-—4F
RMB’000
ARETT

1,372,662
628,837
255,300
168,641
296,499

24.56
24.52

8.5
3.4
11.9

45.8%
18.6%
12.3%

6.8%
11.8%

1.9

226

135

250

15.8

Net cash

AFRE
17.6%
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Notes:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance divided by turnover (including value-added tax) and
multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

T0 ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | hereby present the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the

“Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

It was more than challenging for us in 2022. Prolonged
Pandemic and related COVID control restrictions in the
past three years disrupted business activities and supply
chains of various industries, and eroded consumption
power. During the Pandemic, China economy was hit hard
and fashion apparel industry was inevitably suffered as
well.

The Company recorded unprecedented sales drop and
financial loss in 2022. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,185.0 million,
representing a decrease of 13.7% from that for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group recorded a net loss
of RMB75.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Since December 2022, Chinese government has gradually
lifted various COVID control restrictions and social and
economic activities have been returning to normal. Retalil
business of the Company’s distributors has shown
encouraging recovery trend. While we expect it will still
take some time for the Group's business to return to the
pre-pandemic levels, we remain positive on the outlook.
At the same time, we will also actively take measures to
control operating costs and inventory levels, and maintain
healthier cash flow and liquidity.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication
and contribution during the difficult time, and to our
shareholders and business partners for their support.

Ziming Yang

17 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. Cabbeen Fashion
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group’)
offer apparel and accessories for men and women. Its
main brands include Cabbeen, Cabbeen Urban and 2AM.
The Group derives its revenue from sales of its products
through franchise stores and online shops. Most of the
products sold under its brand names are designed by the
Group and majority of the products sold are manufactured
by independent manufacturers in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 4 wholesale
distributors, 24 consignment distributors and 96 sub-
distributors operating a total of 649 retail shops in mainland
China, and the Group also operated 4 retail shops in Hong
Kong. In addition, the Group operates WeChat store and
other online shops on e-commerce platforms including
T-mall, JD.com, vipshop, Tiktok and sells products to other
online distributors.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had four design
workshops in Guangzhou City, Hong Kong, Milan and
Paris, respectively, with a team of 40 (2021: 80), including
30 designers (2021: 64) joining from mainland China,
other Asia countries, Hong Kong and Europe. The Group
also works with design institutes and contract designers
from around the world. It offered over 3,200 new stock-
keeping-units (SKUs) for 2022 product collections (over
4,400 SKUs for 2021 product collections).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTER R 2 (1)

Retail channel performance

Performance of retail stores operated by the Group, its
distributors and sub-distributors for the year ended 31
December 2022 are summarized below.

- Total retail revenue from all channels for the year
ended 31 December 2022 decreased by 15.9% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021.

- Retail sales revenue from physical stores for the year
ended 31 December 2022 decreased by 21.6% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021.

- Retail revenue from online platforms decreased
by approximately 3.4% for the year ended 31
December 2022 as compared to the year ended 31
December 2021.

- Cabbeen had 3.8 million WeChat VIP members as
of 31 December 2022.

- Average retail discount at physical stores for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately

29.4%. (2021: 27.3%).

- Up to 28 February 2023, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2022 collections was over 69%.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited 12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTR R 2 (1)

STORES NETWORK BEERE
Retail network by geographical regions RIWBEESSHTERNE
At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
HE-B--E+ZA=1-A HE - E_-%1-A=1-A
Wholesale Consignment Self-operated Total | Wholesale Consignment Seff-operated Total
bt s HE st g 3K RE &
Geographical HE
Central China £ 148 32 - 180 178 31 - 209
Southwestern China il K 4 - 108 40 18 - 158
Southern China bl 19 207 - 226 22 238 - 260
Fastern China R 1 53 - 54 2 75 - 77
Northern China £ 5 38 - 43 12 57 - 69
Northwestern China iihls 10 21 - 3 15 30 - 45
Northeastern China Bt - 7 - 7 - 12 - 12
Hong Kong B - - 4 4 - - 1 1
Total @t 217 432 4 653 269 561 1 831
Retail outlets by brands %5 2 84 p 2 & /54 AN
67.1%
63.7% 557
416
@ Cabbeen & 28.2% 25.6%
Cabbeen Urban -RE#tH 1 84 21 3
® 2AM % =B 34% 1.5% 3.2% 42% 5 4%
/ . 0.7%
@ Multi-brands % ke 22 10 21 35 20 6
© Others Hth - | all |

&%
Department store & & A7)
© Street shops 4

@ Shopping mall

As of 31 December 2022
RZZ—_—F+-A=+—H

As of 31 December 2021
R_F——F+-A=+—H

Retail outlets by channel i%:R:& 8|75 W 2 & /55 AEEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGEGE

51.9%

339

27.3%

178

As of 31 December 2022
R=E—_—F+-A=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHRTRE S (1)

Retail outlets by city-tiers %35 A% 51 &2 M2 /5 A

46.6%
31.2"/&. 304
® Tier 1 —R 20
Tier 2 R 11.0%
@ Tier 3 =5 7
® Tior 4 ) o
As of 31 December 2022
R_B_—_F+-_A=+—H
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Prolonged pandemic and continuous COVID control policy
have limited customers’ ability and willingness to access
to shops, adversely affect economic activities and eroded
consumer sentiment. Even though mainland China has
fully reopened since December 2022, we expect it takes
time for the market to recover due to business disruption
from COVID in the past few years and negative wealth
effect from recent real estate market downturn.

We believe that many apparel companies operating in
mainland China recorded sales drop and financial loss
in 2022. Bloated inventories in the industry could lead to
aggressive discounting which will adversely affect revenue
of the industry in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
we expect there will be ongoing downward pressure on
apparel market in the medium term.

47.0%
31. 64"/”
0
1%23% 10.0% 11.6%
As of 31 December 2021
R=F=—F+=-A=t+—H

OB

RRBENRBRFENRBEEBERRS T
BRIFDEENEN NER - HREEEIEK
TRIZENEIR T HEBR - AMEFBERME
“ToF+-REREE2EEHNAN  EHR
BEHFRITERNERTE M ET ST
HImERIBERELENAMERE - RAFEH
ENFB—ERIFREA GEIRE °

%ZW%HT* HEEREAMKLEHRERFR
“ECERBIHER NREMYBEE - XX
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zxrhtﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁw?ﬁﬁgT?%%E@EEjJ°

Cabbeen Fashion Limited | 14 | Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE GROUP’S
OPERATION

Strict COVID control restrictions were in place throughout
mainland China from January 2020 to December 2022.
Stay-home orders, quarantine orders, travel restrictions
and mass virus testing were required whenever a COVID
case was detected in the neighbourhood. COVID control
measures disrupted business activities and customers’
willingness and ability to access to shops.

The Group’s logistics centre and retail shops operated
by the Group’s distributors were ordered to close
temporarily from time to time during 2022 whenever a
COVID case was detected in the local area. The Group’s
online business was also significantly constrained due to
difficulties faced by the Group in delivering products. Two
of the Group’s major markets, namely Guangzhou and
Wuhan, were hit hard by COVID restrictions in the fourth
quarter of 2022.

Under the circumstances together with negative wealth
effect from recent property market downturn, consumption
sentiments, particularly for non-essential items like fashion
apparels, dropped to recent years lows in 2022,

20225 8% | 15
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHRTRE S (1)

Accordingly, revenue and profit of the Group dropped
abruptly and substantially in 2022 with additional costs
incurred for COVID safety measures and additional
logistics expenses. The Group has been using its best
endeavours to minimize cash outflow and preserve its
resources in this difficult environment. The Group has cut
back purchase orders for 2022 and 2023 collections,
laid off its employees, stopped new hirings, negotiated
discounts from suppliers, worked with distributors to close
some of the physical retail stores and hold up investment
projects. In addition, the Group has been managing
operating expenses tightly and reducing marketing and
promotion budgets.

PROSPECTS

PRC has fully reopened from COVID restrictions since
December 2022, and the government has also deployed
various easing policy to support economic recovery and
revive consumer confidence. We are cautiously optimistic
about the market. We will continue to improve our R&D
and supply chain management capabilities for original
designs and value for money products. We will also
continue to streamline our retail network and invest in new
retail channels and enhance brand image. In addition,
the Group has been investing in new fashion brands with
different styles from its existing main brands and targeting
younger customer groups. We believe those investments
will create value and returns to our shareholders in the
near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EERTR R 2 (1)

FINANCIAL REVIEW gy qm] ]
Revenue =
Revenue hy sales channel BREERENSHKE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+=-A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥F AREFIT
Onlineshops ~ #RL/5% | 665052 56.1% | 668,901 48.7%
Offline shops BTG
Wholesale #h2 185,842 15.7% 278,473 20.3%
Consignment 8 327,371 27.6% 423,896 30.9%
__ Self-operated B’ AR 6,784 06% | 1892 0.1%
] 519997 43.9% | 703,761  51.3%
Net revenue F 1,185,049 100.0% 1,372,662 100.0%
Revenue by brands BREEISHIKE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-—A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E—4F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TF T ARETIT
Cabbeen & 822,561 69.4% 942 164 68.6%
Cabbeen Urban REH ™ 305,847 25.8% 384,019 28.0%
2AM =1L 34,991 3.0% 34,434 2.5%
Others T 21650 1.8% | 12045 0.9%
1,185,049 100.0% 1,372,662 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTER R 2 (1)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit was RMB507.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 compared to RMB628.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross profit margin decreased from 45.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to 42.8% for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in gross profit margin was
attributable to the increase in sales discounts offered to
distributors.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, government grants and net foreign
exchange differences. The decrease in other income from
RMB68.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB14.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly attributable to reduction in government grant
income and an increase in foreign exchange loss in 2022.

Net income from sale of personal protective
equipment (“PPE”)

PPE business was terminated in December 2021. Revenue
and net income from sales of PPE for the year ended 31
December 2021 was amounted to RMB33.9 million and
RMB2.0 million, respectively.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for e-commerce sales channels, advertising
and promotion, and logistics and delivery expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to RMB235.9 million, representing a
decrease of RMB54.7 million or 18.8%, from that of the
year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease of selling
and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 was attributable to the decrease in advertising and
promotion expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Selling and distribution expense for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 mainly comprised
the following items:

HE—

=

=<

EERTR R 2 (1)

——FR-FE-_—F+-_RA=+—H

IFEZHERD A EEMATHEK

2022 2021
—E-—F = —4%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Staff costs BT 57,527 70,351
Advertising and promotion EERIEE 77,778 139,501
Delivery and logistics & R 39,989 37,926
e-commerce platform and EETalehEERY
operating expenses 40,589 28,909
Others A 20018 | 13,931
235,901 290,618
Administrative and other operating expenses T B Hfth & E BT

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, management consulting expenses, provision
for inventories and doubtful debts, depreciation and
amortization charges and other miscellaneous expenses.
Administrative and other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB341.2 million
representing an increase of RMB187.7 million or 122.2%
from the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 as mainly attributable to an increase in impairment of
inventories and trade and bills receivables and an increase
of depreciation pertained to the Group’s new headquarters
in Guangzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTER R 2 (1)

Administrative and other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 mainly comprised the
following items:

Staff costs, exclude B TR (BHREFBRIN)

termination benefits

Termination benefits BEREA

Research and development #3457 (B TR AR S1)
expenses, exclude staff
costs

Amortization and depreciation #§4 & ITE

Auditors’ remuneration ZERNEN &

Legal and professional fee FRREEEA

Impairment loss of trade and ‘& 5 & Ug /I8 K

FEWRIBE R BIE R 1R
H it MR R E & 1R

bills receivables
Impartment loss of
other receivables

Inventory write-down FEMR
Donations e
Others HAh

e Z- " FR-"F-—F+-A=+—H
FFEZTHREEMNE BRI EEHUTA
EJZ :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLHFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
54,142 56,705

17,493 1,981
16,149 12,333
44,683 23,954
3,056 3,042
1,304 2,824
97,462 608
8,375 (3874)
67,228 47,389
11,583 1,347

SR 19774 3,780

341,249 153,589

Loss from operations

The Group recorded a loss from operations of RMB56.1
million (2021: profit of RMB255.3 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Loss from operations was
mainly attributable to significant reduction in revenue, an
increase in impairment loss for inventories, trade and bill
receivables and an increase in depreciation related to a
new headquarters in Guangzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB21.3 million (2021:
RMB16.2 million) or 1.8% (2021: 1.18%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for a Hong Kong dollar bank loan of a subsidiary
operated in Hong Kong. The increase in interest expenses
was because of the increase in bank lending rates.

Share of loss of an associate

The associated company is engaged in property
development, in which the Group has 33.33% (2021:
33.33%) effective equity interest. The property held by this
associated company is an office in Guangzhou City, the
PRC.

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted RMB68.9 million and the
effective tax rate was 29.0%. Since the Group recorded
loss before tax for the year ended 31 December 2022,
there was a income tax credit of RMB5.2 million.

Loss for the year

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB75.2 million (2021: profit of RMB168.6 million). Basic
and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 were RMB12.73 cents (2021: earnings per share of
RMB24.56 cents) and RMB12.73 cents (2021: earnings
per share of RMB24.52 cents), respectively.

Excluding the net profit from PPE business, profit for the
year and net profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB167.1 million and 12.2%, respectively.

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 246
days for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared
to 226 days for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase was a result of significant drop in sales revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHRTRE S (1)

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
increased to 171 days for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared to 135 days for the year ended 31
December 2021. The longer turnover days was due to
extended credit terms offered to the Group’s distributors.

Average trade and bills payable turnover days remained
fairly stable for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022 at 250 days and 228 days, respectively.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 20.4% as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 17.6%), being a ratio of sum of bank loans of
RMB270.2 million (2021: RMB251.2 million) to equity.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

Except for interest in an associate with carrying value
of RMB44.6 million, there was no significant investment
held by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. Please refer to note 13 to the Company's financial
statements as of 31 December 2022 and for the year then
ended contained in this annual report for details of such
investment in an associate. The associated company is
holding an office premises in Guangzhou City, the PRC for
sales and rental purposes. The Group's investment in this
associate is for long term capital appreciation.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in section “Capital Commitments and
Contingencies”, as of the date of this report, the Group did
not have plans for material investments and capital assets
in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and time deposits with initial
terms of over three months totaling RMB429.8 million (31
December 2021: RMB650.8 million).

At 31 December 2022, the Group was in net debt
position of RMB57.4 million (31 December 2021: net
cash of RMBO0.5 million). Net cash or net debt equals
all borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents. The
decrease in net cash as of 31 December 2022 was mainly
attributable to reduction of operating cash inflow.

The Group recorded net operating cash outflow of
RMB90.0 million (2021: RMB3.7 million) for the year ended
31 December 2022. The operating cash outflow for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to
an increase in trade and bills receivables.

Net cash generated from investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB110.3 million (2021:
net cash used in investing activities of RMB84.7 million),
which represented mainly the reduction of time deposits.

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB59.9 million
(2021: RMB188.5 million) for the year ended 31 December
2022. This mainly consisted of payments of dividends of
RMB25.0 million and payment of bank loan interests of
RMB18.8 million.

Short term bank loans as of 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 were denominated in the following

EERTR R 2 (1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERTER R 2 (1)

Loan denominated in Hong Kong dollar of RMB251.2
million as at 31 December 2021 was at floating interest
rate, unsecured and drawn under a three-year term loan
facilities of HK$350.0 million offered by a licensed bank
in Hong Kong. Pursuant to the facility, the controlling
shareholder shall maintain his equity interest and voting
rights in the Company at a certain level. The loan was fully
repaid on maturity in December 2022.

Short term bank loans denominated in Renminbi of
RMB270.2 million as at 31 December 2022 were at fixed
rate, secured by land use rights and certain properties of
the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total banking
facilities of RMB360.6 million (2021: RMB594.2 million),
of which RMBO0.7 million (2021: RMB76.8 million) were
unutilized.

The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
healthy and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements.

The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with most
of the transactions originally denominated and settled
in RMB. However, the Group pays dividends in Hong
Kong dollars and it may have outstanding bank loans
denominated in Hong Kong dollars from time to time.
Accordingly, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from Hong dollar against RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency
hedge arrangement if necessary. During the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, no forward
foreign exchange or hedging contracts had been entered
into by the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, deposits with certain banks
of approximately RMB72.0 million (2021: RMB114.1
million) and certain land and properties thereon located
in Fujian Province of the PRC with carrying value of
RMB206.0 million (2021: RMB224.4 million) were pledged
as securities for bank loans and bills payable facilities.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant loans and bills payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB15.9 million (2021: RMB88.4 million),
primarily related to investments in Fujian logistics centre.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the
Group had no material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EHRTRE S (1)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 333 employees
(2021: 545 employees). Significant decrease of workforce
in 2022 was primarily related to laid off and cost cutting
measures during COVID. Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB129.2 million (2021: RMB129.0 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.

FOR DETERMINING THE ELIGIBILITY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE 2023 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 24 April 2023 to Thursday, 27 April 2023
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2023 AGM”). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2023 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 April 2023.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may
be paid only out of its distributable reserves as permitted
under the relevant laws. Holders of the shares will be
entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares.
Subject to the factors described above, the Company
has adopted a general dividend policy since the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring and paying
dividends on semi-annual basis of not more than 50%
of its total net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Board would review the Company’s
dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital
investment and business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT

EREIWSE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Board is
satisfied that save for the deviation from code Provision
C.2.1 as disclosed below, the Company complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules for the entire year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr.
Rongqin Ke and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 61
to 68 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company, is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Rongqgin Ke, who is an executive
Director of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there
are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at
the Group’s expense upon their reasonable request. The
Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism annually.
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All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8
October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, hamely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

(i)

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2022. Major work
completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

° reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim
financial information and annual financial
statements;

o reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues;

° reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,

independence and performance;

° reviewed the external auditor’s management
letter and the management’s response;

° reviewed annual internal audit plans;

° assisted the Board to evaluate on the
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures
and internal control system;

o advised on material event or drawing the
attention of the management on related risks;

° reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal control and
risk management;

° reviewed connected transactions entered into
by the Group or subsisting during the year;
and

° reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk

management and internal control systems in
respect of the previous fiscal year annually.
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(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr.
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors
and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The
Company'’s objective for its remuneration policy is
to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The remuneration policy for the Directors and
our senior management members is based on
their experience, level of responsibility, length
of service and general market conditions. Any
discretionary bonus and other merit payments are
linked to the financial results of the Group and the
individual performance of the directors and senior
management members.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2022. Major
work completed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year includes:

° reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

o reviewed the Company’s share option
scheme; and
° assessed performance of our executive

Directors, discussed and approved the terms
of executive Directors’ service contracts.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year

EREQIWRSE (1])
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ended 31 December 2022 is set out below: LRI

Remuneration bands Number of persons
< 2 E AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T E 2,000,000 % 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial
statements.
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(i) Nomination Committee (i) RBEERAT

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
SO as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and reviewed
the size, diversity and composition of the Board,
and discussed the policy for the nomination of
directors, which includes the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship.
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(iv) Corporate Governance Gommittee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises
one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung
Ng, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance
Committee are to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, the
training and continuous professional development of
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2022
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
and reviewed duties performed by the Board under
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and the
meetings of the Board and other Board committees held
during the year:

AGM Board
RRBFAE Bz
Executive Directors ~ H{TEE
M. Ziming Yang BEPEE 11 4/4
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RO®EAE 17 3/4
Mr. Rongain Ke R 0/1 4/4
Independent BUHTES
non-executive
Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui RRELE 11 4/4
Mr. Honghui Chen REBEE 0/1 4/4
Mr. Ming Shu Leung 2R EE 0/1 4/4
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2022, subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively represent
the best interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board, the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates
for director, consider diversity (including, but not limited
to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and
such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then
current and anticipated future needs of the Board and
the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new
board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;

o broad experience in business;

° ability to provide insights and practical wisdom
based on their experience and expertise;

° commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

° sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

their service on other boards of public companies
should be limited to a reasonable number;

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and
° ability to develop a good working relationship with

other Board members and contribute to the Board’s
working relationship with senior management of the
Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 8
October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on the Company’s Board
Nomination Policy and a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group’s core markets and
distribution channels.

The Board considered that independent non-executive
Directors can enhance the effectiveness and decision-
making of the Board by providing independent view,
objective judgement and constructive challenge to the
Board and management of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board
recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity
at the Board level and shall continue to take initiatives
to identify female candidate(s) to enhance the gender
diversity among the Board members. We will continue
with our endeavor to increase female representation in
our Board and appoint, subject to the above, at least one
female representation in our Board before 31 December
2024.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was
generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022. As of the date of
this report, all Directors and 44.1% of our total workforce
were male.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, briefings and updates on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the
Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. In September 2022, the Company, together with
its legal adviser, organized a training session to provide the
Directors with an update on the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Ziming Yang holds the positions of Chairman and
chief executive officer. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. Yang’s extensive experience in the industry
and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Yang provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, allows for more effective
planning and execution of long-term business strategies
and enhances efficiency in decision-making.

As all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees,
and there are independent non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is
therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board. The Board will continue to review and monitor the
practices of the Company for the purpose of complying
with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the tenure of office, all of the independent non-
executive Directors have performed their duties and
responsibility to the satisfaction of the Board. In addition,
each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of
the opinion that Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung maintain their independence
even they have served the Board for more than ten
years since February 2013, and believes that their
valuable knowledge and experience continue to generate
significant contribution to the Board, the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung had served the Board for more than nine years by
the time of last annual general meeting held on 4 April
2022. The 2022 AGM circular dated 3 March 2022 did
not expressly state the length of tenure of each of the two
independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung), because the Company
considered that such information was apparent in the
annual report of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2021, which had been published and was
despatched to the shareholders together with the 2022
AGM circular.

Pursuant to Code Provision B2.3 of the CG Code, Mr.
Ming Shu Leung (who shall retire by rotation and is eligible
for re-election by the shareholders) is subject to a separate
resolution to be further appointed as an independent non-
executive Director. Details of the factors considered and
the process and the discussion of the Board and/or the
Nomination Committee in arriving at the determination
of independence and continuous appointment of Mr.
Ming Shu Leung are set out in the circular convening the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.4(b) of the CG Code, if
all the independent non-executive directors of an issuer
have served more than nine years on the board, the issuer
should appoint a new independent non-executive director
on the board at the forthcoming annual general meeting
with effect from the financial year commencing on or after
1 January 2023. Accordingly, Ms. Jing Gu (&) will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be appointed as an additional independent
non-executive Director with effect from the conclusion of
the meeting. The profile of Ms. Jing Gu is set out in the
circular convening the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other Board
Committees as organised by the Board from time to
time. Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer on
governance matters.

During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 61 to 68 in the annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The system
include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and are designed to help the Group identify,
evaluate and manage the significant risks (including
environmental, social and governance risks) to achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Group’s internal control system is
designed to safeguard assets against misappropriation
and unauthorized disposition and to manage operational
risks. Review of the Group’s internal controls covering
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The controls built into
the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

The Group’s internal audit department monitors
compliance with policies and procedures and the
effectiveness of internal control structures across the
Group and its principal divisions. The Board engaged
external professional expert to assess the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
periodically which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls as well as
risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

o identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

° develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;
° monitor and review the effectiveness of such

measures; and

° review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in respect
of the previous fiscal year annually.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.

The Board considered that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination of
risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could take
and effectiveness of risk management measures. Based on
the reports from the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEEZ

Review of interim results ERPEEE
Internal control review BEER S
Tax consultation services M A AR

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute
Result”), Ascend Fame Limited (“Ascend Fame”), Prime
Ascend Limited (“Prime Ascend”) are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(© the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d) the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

(i) Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(ifi) Convening extraordinary general meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREQIWSE (1])

(iv)

The notice of annual general meeting together
with the accompanying circular setting out the
relevant information as required under the Listing
Rules are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has
been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication
with the Shareholders and stakeholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies.

The Company is committed to enhancing long-term
shareholder value through regular communication
with its shareholders, both individual and institutional.
The Company strives to ensure that all shareholders
have ready, equal and timely access to all publicly
available information of the Company that is accurate,
comprehensible and informative. The shareholders’
communication policy sets out the framework in place to
promote effective communication with shareholders so
as to enable them to engage actively with the Company
and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting
(the “EGM”). In respect of each matter to be considered
at the annual general meeting and the EGM, including
the reelection of Directors, a separate resolution will be
proposed by the chairman of the Board. The chairman
of the Board and the chairmen of the Board Committees
and, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, will be available at the annual general
meeting and the EGM to meet with the Shareholders
and answer their enquiries. The Company will also invite
representatives of the auditor of the Company to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company to answer
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREQIWSE (1])

The communication strategies under the shareholders’
communication policy are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.

Shareholders and the investment community may
at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

Shareholders and the investment community can
contact the secretary of the Company by email,
fax, phone or mail via designated contacts of the
Company during office hours in order to enable
them to make any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communications

Corporate communication documents (including
annual report, interim report, notice of meeting,
circular and proxy form) would be provided to
shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders have the right to
choose the language (either English or Chinese) or
means of receipt of the corporate communications
(in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst
other things, in particular, their email addresses
to the Company in order to facilitate timely and
effective communications.

Corporate Website

Information on the Company’s investor relations
website (ir.cabbeen.com) is updated on a regular
basis.
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(iv)

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Corporate communications are posted on the
Company website as soon as practicable following
their publication on the website of Stock Exchange.
Such information includes, but not limited to,
financial statements, results announcements, ESG
reports, circulars and notices of general meetings
and associated explanatory documents.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction
with the Company’s annual and interim results
announcement will be made available on the
Company’s investor relations website as soon as
practicable after their release.

All press releases issued by the Company would be
made available on the Company’s investor relations
website as soon as practicable after their releases.

A dedicated Corporate Governance section is
also available on the Company website, which
included director nomination policy and shareholder
communication policy, and updated on a regular
basis.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend
and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will
be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and,
if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, the chairmen of Board
Committees or their delegates and external auditor
would, where appropriate, attend annual general
meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

PREIRE ()
(v) Investment Market Communications

Investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings,
roadshows, media interviews, company visits and
marketing activities would be available when and
if appropriate, in order to facilitate communication
between the Company, shareholders and the
investment community.

Directors and employees who have contacts or
dialogues with investors, analysts, media or other
interested outside parties are required to comply
with the disclosure obligations and requirements
under the Company’s information disclosure policy.

The Company continues to promote investor
relations and enhance communication with the
existing shareholders and potential investors. The
Company welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
policy and considered the policy was properly
carried out during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MISSION, CORE VALUE AND CORPORATE
CULTURE

Vision
Leveraging Chinese culture to build a fashion brand for the
world.

Mission
Focus on quality, pursue creative design, and continue to
fulfil customer’s dressing needs for different occasions.

Core value
We work in fashion and pursue a quality life style;

Constantly improve and surpass ourselves;

We aim to create a harmonious and simple working
environment that demonstrates individuality;

We are grateful and dedicated to serve our society while
working hard to create a new fashion trend in China.

Business Philosophy

Our operation is our outline for enhancing our brand value,
and our management is our foundation for building our
human resources.

Management Principles

Share responsibilities and results, more pay for more work,
refuse mediocrity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

ANTI-GORRUPTION POLICY

The Group highly values honesty and integrity. The Group
provides each employee with clear guidelines in staff
handbook and organizes annual training on prevention
of corruption. Employees of the Group may never offer,
give, or accept gifts of cash (or cash equivalents) in any
business relationship because these could be considered
an illegal bribe or kickback. Gifts and hospitality from
business partners to members of employees’ family, to
those with whom the employee has a close personal
relationship, would be treated as if they were given to that
employee as well and thus be prohibited.

The Group requires all of its distributors and suppliers
to sign anti-bribery sub-agreements when they enter
into agreements with the Group. These anti-bribery sub-
agreements impose obligations on the distributors or
suppliers and the Group to comply with applicable laws
and regulations in relation to unfair competition and anti-
bribery. The Group is entitled to terminate the agreements
with distributors or suppliers for their non-compliance with
the terms of the anti-bribery sub-agreements.

The Group encourages whistle-blowing of suspected
corruption, fraud or money laundering cases and offers
rewards to whistle-blower if the case is proved to be valid.
Whistle-blower can report suspected cases to any one of
the directors or vice-presidents of the Group who will then
work with the Board and/or our senior management team
to carry out necessary approaches to investigate and solve
these cases.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has whistleblowing procedures
(“Whistleblowing Policy”) sets out for dealing with
allegations of illegal, unethical and improper conduct in the
workplace. Whistleblowing Policy is intended to provide
a means of making serious allegations about standards,
conduct, financial irregularity or possible unlawful action
in a way that will ensure confidentiality and protect those
making such allegations in the reasonable belief that
it is right to do so from being victimised, discriminated
against or disadvantaged. Whistleblowing Policy applies
to all employees and business partners of the Group.
The identity of the whistleblower will be treated with strict
confidence.

Whistleblowing Policy is not designed to question financial
or business decisions undertaken by the management, nor
should it be used to reconsider any other matters which
have been already addressed under other procedures.
Whistleblowing Policy does not replace other complaints
procedures.

Anonymous allegation

The Group encourages whistleblowers to put their name to
an allegation wherever possible as anonymous allegations
may often be difficult to substantiate/prove. Anonymous
allegations will be considered at the discretion of the Audit
Committee or the Board. In exercising discretion to accept
an anonymous allegation the factors to be taken into
account:

o The seriousness of the issue raised;
° The credibility of the allegation; and
° Whether the allegation can realistically be

investigated from factors or sources other than the
complainant.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

Untrue Allegations

No disciplinary or other action will be taken against a
whistleblower who makes an allegation in the reasonable
belief that it is a right thing to do even if the allegation is
not substantiated by an investigation. However, disciplinary
action may be taken against a whistleblower who makes
an allegation without reasonable belief that it is true and
in the interest of the Group (e.g. making an allegation
frivolously, maliciously or for personal gain where there is
no element of public interest).

Procedure for Making an Allegation

It is preferable for allegations to be made to an employee’s
immediate manager to whom they report. However, this
may depend on the seriousness and sensitivity of the
issues involved and who is suspected of the malpractice.
The whistleblower may make an allegation direct to the
chairman of Audit Committee or to the Chairman. Persons
making a report should exercise due care in ensuring
accuracy of the information they report. If the report
concerns the chairman of Audit Committee or a member
of Audit Committee, the whistleblower should raise his
concerns to the Chairman. If the report concerns the
Chairman, the person should raise his concerns to the
chairman of Audit Committee.

Action on receipt of an Allegation

The Audit Committee or the Board will appoint a team
to record and investigate details of the allegation. If the
allegation discloses evidence of a criminal offence, it will
immediately be reported to the Audit Committee or the
Board and a decision will be made as to whether to inform
the police.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group accepts that whistleblowers need to be assured
that the matter has been properly addressed. Thus,
subject to legal constraints, the Group will inform those
making allegations of the outcome of any investigation.
The Board has overall responsibility for the operation of this
policy and for determining the administrative processes
to be followed and the format of the records to be kept.
The Audit Committee will report annually to the Board
on the operation of the policy and on the whistleblowing
allegations made during the period covered by the report.
The report will be in a form which does not identify
whistleblowers.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sulfficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist
to prevent the Company from breaching the statutory
disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate
internal control and reporting systems to identify and
assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

° define the requirements of periodic financial
and operational reporting to the Board and
Company Secretary to enable them to assess
inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

° controls the access to inside information by
employees on a need-to-know basis, and
safeguarding the confidentiality of the inside
information before it is properly disclosed to public;
and

° procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors,
analysts, etc. in ways which are in compliance with
the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EREQIWSE (1])

The Group has also established and implemented
procedures to handle enquiries from external parties
related to the market rumours and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (#%£8), aged 51, is the founder of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 3 November 2011. He is the chairman
of the Board of the Company since November 2011
and has been the chief executive officer of the Company
since March 2020. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible
for overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development, and leads the Group’s design and research
and development team.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale Cabbeen branded apparel. Mr.
Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He has
been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer™ (&£ B2
5%5TEM) at the China International Fashion Week* (% B E
B2 B 3£ 48) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion Design
Top Award™ (25 14 JE # BIRF 2 5% 51 € T 22), which is the
top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr. Yang
was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic Figure”
(20104 fZ R INALE A¥D) and was the member of the 10th
China Young Entrepreneurs Association (5 + &+ Bl & F
TEXRBEEE) in 2010. In 2011, he was the honorable
president of Shishi Textile & Garments Commerce
Chamber’s Council (AR M4 REESEEERETR)
and a committee member of the 11th Committee of All-
China Youth Federation (FE2BEEFHEEE T —[EE
BE&Z8). In 2012, Mr. Yang was the first president of the
Fashion Designers’ Association of Fujian Province* (1f8#2%&

ARZEFRETAI e S — @2 &) and the honorable president
of Quanzhou APEC Commerce Chamber’s Council* (&
MAPECH 75 1 € & & € K). In March 2013, Mr. Yang
became a consulting professor of Beijing Institute of
Fashion Technology (1t 7 ARZEERT ). In April 2014, Fujian
Normal University (1& 22l €5 KX £2) appointed Mr. Yang as
a guest professor. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently the
vice president and a member of the standing committee
and the arts committee of the China Fashion Designers
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFRERTEREREFN (&)

A+ =L

Association (F Bl AR 5 &% 51 B0 13 &). Mr. Yang has been
the vice president of the standing committee of the China
Garment Association* (FF B Az 2 # &) since October
2013. Since February 2022, Mr.Yeung has been serving
as the chairman of the Shishi Industrial and Commercial
Commission* (AT LR ¥H4E®) and the president of
the Shishi General Chamber of Commerce* (G T 427 ).

In April 2013, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative
person of China textile industry* (2012 FR Bl 47 41T % F &
Al ¥ A ) by The Association of China Textile Industry*
(PRI 4 T %84 2). In 2015, Mr. Yang was awarded
the “New China Annual Award for Artistic Innovation” (¥t
Fp B 1 81|58 FF £ K 22) by the China Fashion Designers
Association and New China Clothing Industry Innovation
& Development Fund* (SR EIRREEXZEIFTEEESS).
Since August 2019, Mr. Yang has been a consultant for
the Guangdong branch of the China Fashion Designers
Association. He also participated in the design and
production of the apparel used for the civilian parade held
during the 70th anniversary of the People’s Republic of
China. In 2020, Mr. Yang was awarded as 2020 Best of
the Best Designer of the Year* (218§ 2 3% 2020 [ & fE &

B 1), and awarded as Outstanding Individual in Na’uonal
Textile and Apparel Industry for Fighting Novel Coronavirus
Epidemic* (2 B4 B TEMEN B A ZBREMA) by
China National Textile and Apparel Council* (FF B %5 & T
¥ A& ). In the same year, he served as the anti-drug
ambassador for Shishi city. In 2021, Mr. Yang was invited
to be the chief costume designer of the “Long March-
5B Y2” and “Long March-7 Y3” rocket launch team, and
became an honorary team member.

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University (7
LA E8) in June 2011. Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Rongain Ke (fI#8%%) who is also our executive Director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 52, is one of the
founding members of the Group and has been an
executive Director of the Company since 18 February
2013. Mr. Ng was the chief executive officer of the
Company from February 2013 to March 2020. He is
responsible for overseeing investor relations and legal
matters of the Company.

Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource. Mr.
Ng obtained his bachelor’s degree in material engineering
majoring in forge craft and equipment from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (_E/8 2238 A2 ) in July 1992.

Mr. Ronggin Ke (f#8X), aged 48, is one of the founding
members of the Group and has been an executive Director
of the Company since 18 February 2013. Mr. Ronggin
Ke is primarily responsible for supply chain and financial
management. Mr. Ke has over 20 years of experience in
various aspects, including manufacturing, product design
and research and development and procurement.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (/4
Fg L % K2 in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province™ (2011-2012 FEEHRE
AREETTE HEBZELIEA) in August 2012. He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University (7 1L R 22288 257 ) in June 2013.

Mr. Rongqin Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFRERTEREREFN (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (#%%&El), aged 54, is an
independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to the Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over
20 years of extensive experience in auditing and
accounting, including experience from corporations and
an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited (E & B BX 12§ A R 2 7))
(stock code: 3336) in August 2004 and has been the
company'’s executive director and chief financial officer
since its listing in the Stock Exchange and served as the
company secretary from August 2004 to March 2017.

He has also respectively been an independent non-
executive director of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited
(1 & = (% B)A B A 7l (stock code: 829) since
September 2009 and Intron Technology Holdings Limited
(1B R B A% A BR A A)) (stock code: 1760) since July
2018, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tsui was also an independent non-executive director
of 361 Degrees International Limited (361 £ Bl I¥ A& R A
7)) (stock code: 1361) from September 2012 to May 2019
and SITC International Holdings Company Limited (&%
B RIERE AR A 7)) (stock code: 1308) from September
2010 to December 2020.

Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007 .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Honghui Chen (FRZ#&), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to the Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has nearly 30 years
of extensive experience teaching universities in the
fields of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr. Chen
had been granted the title of deputy professor from April
2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently granted the
title of professor since July 2008.

Mr. Chen was the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University (I K22Em 208k &)
from November 2007 to March 2012 and the chairman
of the Department of Economics and the Department
of Management at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (P IL A SR B2 EBEERE R LB K E IR
Z F {F) from February 2008 to April 2018. Mr Chen has
been the director of the Research Center for Corporate
Social Responsibility at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University* (FIL RSB ERPECSHEEREFR OLED
from July 2009 to June 2021. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen
has done various researches on the topics of corporate
social responsibility and strategic management and
economics efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or
local government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007
was accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (BRE B2 SR BEFINR _FR).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFRERTEREREFN (&)

Mr. Chen has been the independent director of Guangzhou
Grandbuy Co., Ltd.) (SZSE stock code: 002187) from
September 2016 to December 2022, and of China
National Accord Medicines Corporation Limited (2 %44 =]
—HEERN AR A R]) (SZSE stock code: 000028) since
April 2017, both companies are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (2 #1&), aged 47, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Since April 2021, Mr. Leung has been serving
as group chief financial officer, a member of strategy
committee of 58.com Inc. and Managing Partner of
58 Industrial Fund (58ZE %% &), where he is mainly
responsible for overseeing overall financial and legal
functions and strategic investment of 58.com Inc.

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director
of Sun King Power Electronics Group Limited (BT &
EABR AT (stock code: 580) since March 2017, Renrui
Human Resources Technology Holdings Limited (A f@ A
IR B BR A A]) (stock code: 6919) since November
2019, Infinities Technology International (Cayman) Holding
Limited (Z 4B EFE (F €)% B B R A F])(stock code:
1961) since May 2022, and Gala Technology Holding
Limited (28 EE B} £ 15 ix B R A 7)) (stock code: 2458)
since January 2023, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Leung has also been a non-executive
director of Gogox Holdings Limited (R¥¥T E AR A
A]) (stock code: 2246) since August 2021, which is listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

From January 2013 to January 2017, he served as chief
financial officer of Visual China Group ({82 (Ff B ) {t 3 &
KD EBR A=), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000681). Since
2017, he has been serving as a founding and managing
partner at Harmony Capital, a family office PE fund with
a focus on internet and consumer sectors in China. From
January 2008 to December 2012, he served as the CFO
of China ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FF Bl & 85 % 18 & &t (1
1%) A BR 2 7)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 01900). From February 2003 to March
2006, he served as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department and subsequently as CFO at CDC
Corporation, a company formerly listed on the NASDAQ.
From October 1999 to December 2000, he served as
a senior consultant at Arthur Andersen & Co. From
September 1998 to August 1999, he served as an auditor
at PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Mr. Leung has been a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since February 2007 and June 2010, respectively. Mr.
Leung obtained a First-Class Honor bachelor’s degree
in accounting from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 1998 and a master’s degree in accounting from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2001.

TENURE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All of the independent non-executive Directors have served
the Company for more than nine years. The lengths of their
tenure as of the date of this report are set out below:
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Name Date of appointment Length of tenure
®A BZEEH £53

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui 18 February 2013 10 years
RABSEE —E—=F=A+)\H +F

Mr. Honghui Chen 18 February 2013 10 years

PRBE S A —E—=FZA+)\H T4

Mr. Ming Shu Leung 18 February 2013 10 years

RERE & —E—=F-A+)\H +4F
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EFRERTEREREFN (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (EE#), aged 48, is the chief
financial officer of the Group. Ms. Wong is also
the company secretary and one of the authorized
representatives of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the
group in April 2012 and is primarily responsible for overall
financial management and company secretarial affairs
and coordination of investor relations. Ms. Wong has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, tax and financial
management. Prior to joining us, she had worked in
international accounting firms and other companies listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong
obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy
at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997 and
master’s degree of science in financial analysis at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014.
She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors hereby present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded menswear and related accessories
in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers of
apparel products accounted for 6.6% (2021: 7.6%) and
21.5% (2021: 27.8%), respectively, of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of apparel products accounted for 6.3%
(2021: 6.3%) and 23.9% (2021: 27.8%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 263 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 127 to 262 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 25 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB46.3 million.

DIVIDEND

On 29 July 2022, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK1 cent (2021: HK8.5 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2021: HK3.4 cents per ordinary share) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB11.3 million (2021: RMB1.3 million).

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-
current assets (including investment properties, other
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) are
set out in notes 10, 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business are provided in the sections headed "Chairman's
Statement" and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

(i)

(i)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese apparel
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Macroeconomic and social environment

The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

In addition, if any event which materially and
adversely affect the social environment of the
markets where we operate arises, such as the
outbreak of novel coronavirus in the PRC in January
2020, such event may cause a significant impact on
our ability to operate business in a normal manner.
Such event may cause disruptions to our normal
business activities, manufacturing of products by us
and/or our suppliers, logistics involved in distributing
our products, among other aspects of our business.
The Group’s operating results and financial condition
may be materially and adversely affected as a result.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

(iv)

(v)

Supply chain

We operate manufacturing facilities in Fujian, the
PRC for producing some of our core products. We
still depend upon independent manufacturers to
produce majority of our products and materials. Any
disruption in the supply of fabric, raw materials and
products from suppliers may cause problems in
our supply chain. We have no long-term contracts
with any of our suppliers and we may need to
compete with other companies for fabrics, raw
materials and apparel products. Nevertheless, we
have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors so as to minimize the impact
from any supply disruptions and ensure we can
locate alternative suppliers of comparable quality
at a reasonable price all the time. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, 23.9% (2021: 27.8%)
of our products were produced by our top five
suppliers and we have at least three years’ business
relationship with these suppliers.

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.

Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.
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Key Relationships

(i)

(i)

Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.

We strive to motivate employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.

We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to
quality and ethics. We carefully select our suppliers
and require them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including track record, experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high-quality
products and quality control effectiveness. We also
require our suppliers to comply with our anti-bribery

policy.
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(ifi) Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.

(iv) Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through mainly
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require our own
factory and factories of our suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules and possess all necessary permission and approval
from the relevant Chinese regulators.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China
and Hong Kong.

SUFFIGIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2022 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Siu Keung Ng

Mr. Rongain Ke

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui

Mr. Honghui Chen

Mr. Ming Shu Leung
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Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2022 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out
on pages 61 to 68 of the annual report. In accordance
with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ming Shu Leung will retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

During the tenure of office, Mr. Ming Shu Leung has
performed as independent non-executive Directors to
the satisfaction of the Board. The Board is of the opinion
that Mr. Leung maintains his independence even if he has
served the Board for more than nine years, and believes
that his valuable knowledge and experience continue
to generate significant contribution to the Board, the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There had been no contract of significance (i) between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or (ii) for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions (the
“Transactions” are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Board confirms that the
Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (if any).

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with the non-
compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year under review. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the Company RELFHHFE

Number of
underlying Approximate
shares percentage
Number of comprised of shares
Name of director shares held in options® Total in issue®
BRERY R HERTRH
Exps FrEERAEE HRRGHE @ st BAEAL O
Mr. Ziming Yang"® CEL el 460,483,209 - 460,483,209 68.87%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Rt 2,926,000 900,000 3,826,000 0.5722%
Mr. Ronggin Ke RIS E 3,850,000 700,000 4,550,000 0.6805%

1)

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Multiplus is interested.

Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr.
Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ms.
Liting Ke is interested.

These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company.

Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2022.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at

31 December 2022, the persons or corporations

(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name

RS

Ms. Liting Ke @
FEE B 4+ 12e)
Acute Result?

’ B2AHE A
Ascend Fame®?
’ BATE A
Multiplus®
B

K

ETY

1)

Capacity/Nature of interest
B EmtE
REEEER R/ T B ER
Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

) ExEAA

Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, Ms.
Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Mr.
Ziming Yang is interested.

Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr.
Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31
July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang, in
addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang
holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the exercise
of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus held
by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.

Pre-IP0 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares of the
Company (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) were granted
on 8 October 2013. The exercise price per Share is
HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial public offering price. No
further option could be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme after 8 October 2013. All Pre-IPO Share
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
may be exercised during the option period commencing
from the first anniversary of the Listing Date to the date
falling 10 years from the grant date of the Pre-IPO Share
Options and can only be exercised in the following manner:

0] 30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing
Date;

(ii) 60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing
Date; and
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(iii) 100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.

The following table set out movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022:

ETEHE (W)

iy BEEBXAFAZEERERERN100% 7]
R ETBE=EERITE -

T A FEHE-_E-——F+—-_A=+—
BItFEREE N ARBERBRETEIRE
B BB A AR

Number of share options
EhESA

Weighted

average

closing price

Qutstanding Quistanding  immediately

asat asat 31 hefore

Exercise 1 January December  the exercise

Name Date of grant price (HKS)  Exercise period 202  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2022 date

W-B-ZF  BRARA

W8k tZR=t-R e

4 btk ik (2n) TREH -A-RHRfE BRY Bfiff h | BAN  WATE  THUHE

(HKS)

(B7)
Director
£

Mr SuKeungNg 8 October 2013 204 from the frst anniversary 900,000 - - - - 900,000 N/A

ROERAE “3-ZETANE of the Listing Date fo TR

M Rongain Ke 80cloer 2018 204 the datefallng 10 years 700,000 - - - - 700000 N/A

YR “T-=57A\H from the grant date i

Others 80ctober 2013 2024 BIMPHEEFEE 1160000 - - - - 1150000 NA

4 Z5-ZErANA RupGERTEER TR
Total

3t 2,750,000 9,750,000

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 2,750,000, representing
approximately 0.41% of the total number of Company’s
issued shares as at the beginning and end of the year
ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this report
and the weighted average number of the shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2022, i.e. 668,593,000
shares.

2022%% | 89

BRIEBRAFREERIBARGT S FEITHRNG
M R2,750,000% - (EEE-_T-__F+=
A=1T—BLEFINERFRARRRE BHR
AREIEBITROBELRBE T _—_F+=
RA=+—HIEFE 28T M T8 (A
668,593,000 M%7 ) 490.41% °

FERGHERAT



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible
persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
any proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
Directors or proposed Director (including non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries*. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Options”) and any other schemes of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 70,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.

Note:

Pursuant to the amendments to Listing Rules with effect from 1
January 2023, the participants eligible for grants under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to Rule 17.03A of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@ the nominal value of a share;
(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Business Days (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

As at the beginning and end of the year ended 31
December 2022 and as at the date of this report, the
total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 56,600,000, representing
approximately 8.47% of the Company’s issued share
capital, and the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
was about 1 year and 7 months. No share options was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2022. As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, there
was no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE(R)

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period
of the Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by KPMG, who
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Cabbeen Fashion Limited (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporation that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources and minimize carbon footprints. The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
overall responsibility for the Group’s environment, society
and governance strategy and reporting and has included
sustainable development as an integral part of strategic
planning. Through the assistance and input from the
Group’s senior management, the Board have identified
certain key issues on environment, society and governance
for monitoring and management. The Group’s senior
managerial staff and department heads have been working
together to set the Group’s sustainability vision, objectives
and strategies and monitor and evaluate environmental,
social and governance (the “ESG”) issues that may
affect the Group’s business and operations. The Board
continuously reviews the policies and risks of environment,
society and governance and keeps formulating and
updating the related goals and targets. In addition, the
Board also considers the impact of the Group’s corporate
social responsibility and sustainability on its stakeholders,
including employees, shareholders, local communities and
the environment, and monitors and tracks the progress
against targets and initiatives through meetings with senior
management.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

The Company’s ESG report is an annual report and
this report is for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022.

This report covers the Group’s (i) headquarters in
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, (ii) an office, show
rooms, certain production facilities and a logistics centre
in Shishi City, Fujian Province, (iii) two other warehouses
in Xian City, Shaanxi Province and Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province, respectively, in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and (iv) four retail shops in Hong Kong. The
Group’s headquarters comprise mainly office premises.
The production facilities in Shishi city comprise a
warehouse, sewing plants and staff dormitories.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B - tERERERSE ()

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This report is prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The reporting
principles are set out below:

Materiality

This report offered an analysis of substantive issues,
which were submitted to the Board for consideration,
and ensured the full disclosure of information that has a
material impact on investors and other stakeholders.

Quantitative

This report presented statistics on ESG quantitative
performance and disclosed two-year historical data.

The Board has acknowledged its responsibility to oversee
the Group’s sustainable development and reviewed the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of this report.

Consistency

This report has been prepared in the same way in terms of
the reporting scope and methodologies as previous years.
ESG data were presented in a consistent manner for
meaningful comparison across different reporting periods.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group’s commitment to sustainability has been at the
core of its business. The Group’s main ESG management
focus are:

o Improving environmental performance — to ensure
appropriate policies and management system are in
place to mitigate impact to the environment

° Being a responsible employer — strives to be a
partner that foster a culture that supports diversity,
attract and retain top talents
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

o Being a good citizen — seeks to make contribution
to community development

° Operating ethically — Upholds business integrity and
transparency of business activities

The Board is ultimately responsible for the overall direction,
strategies, objectives, performance and report of the
Group’s sustainable development. Through the assistance
and input from the Group’s senior management, the
Board have identified certain key issues on environment,
society and governance for monitoring and management.
The Group’s senior managerial staff and department
heads have been working together to set the Group’s
sustainability vision, objectives and strategies and monitor
and evaluate ESG issues that may affect the Group’s
business and operations. The Board continuously reviews
the policies and risks of ESG and keeps formulating and
updating the related goals and targets.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the views of its stakeholders and strives
to achieve the balance of interests of its shareholders,
employees, business partners, customers and the society.
The Group has established on-going communication
channels with its stakeholders and incorporated their
issues into the Group’s operation and decision making
process. The Group has been actively responded to their
concerns and demand.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders on an

ongoing basis through various channels and identified their
main issues as follows.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

Stakeholders
HE

Government
and regulatory
authorities

B R & S

Investment
institutions and
shareholders

REMB IR

Suppliers
HIER

Customers

EN

Local community

A AL [

Communication channels

BERE

o Company Intranet
TW HF/\H

e Staff meetings
BIgH

¢ Training and seminars
BRI K o R

e Employee activities
=l

® Regular reporting
EEIHRE

e Supervision and inspection
g/—f&gg/—;u

B miR

° Company’s announcements
NSIVNCS
o Shareholders meetings
R
e  Company website and e-mails
NE) AL K B E
e Roadshows and reverse roadshows

B N [ [P B R

e Regular communication
EEER

e Business visits
E03 ]

e Review and appraisal meetings
*/\n/\ u‘—_r&u$1$ = uiﬁt

e Company website and e-mails

N A & B E

e Regular communication
EHER

e Business visits
ES37 ]

e Sales fairs
HERE

e Fashion shows

REZ M

e Customer Service hotlines
2P RIBERER

e Media activities
RS &)

e |Interactive platforms such as Wechat
EEF e (WRE)

e  Company website and e-mails

N AL N BB

e Community services

At [ AR 75
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Issues

1

e \Welfare and benefits
=R S EE

e (Qccupation health and safety
BERREZE

e Career development

EXRRR

e Compliance and risk management
AR NEREIR

e Business ethic and anti-corruption
BEEREARES

e ESG
RIE - HEgkER

° Compllancekand risk management
BRAEREE
e Economic performance

BRI

e Supply chain management
HrEpEE e

e Business ethics and anti-corruption
BEBEARES

e Product design and safety
EmRat e ®

e Customer privacy protection
B FRILRE

e Customer service satisfaction
BEPREmEE

e Protection of intellectual property
rights
1% R BERE

e Business ethics and anti-corruption
[SES LISV

e  Community investments and
charities
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Company has conducted an analysis of material
issues and identified the Group’s stakeholders’ material
ESG issues by taking into consideration of its own
business, industry environment, operation characteristics
and the experience of peers. The materiality has been
analyzed and ranked based on stakeholder’ requirements
and issues.

To ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies,
the Board reviews the results of the identification of the
Group’s material ESG issues on an annual basis to ensure
that its ESG strategies covers material ESG issues.
The process of determining materiality is guided by the
following principles:

o Consider the input from key stakeholders and their
main ESG issues.

o Consider input from the Group’s management about
ESG issues and related material impact on the
Group’s business.

o Review material ESG issues including those high
concern to stakeholders and have a material impact
on the Group’s business.

o To evaluate and prioritize the most material ESG
topics for ESG report disclosure and future
development.

The materiality assessment has helped the Group to
analyse its ESG risks and opportunities in an attempt to
improve its business strategies. It has also helped the
Group meet the sustainability reporting standards and lead
to better resource allocation focusing on the important
ESG issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

(A)

Al:

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is principally engaged in design and
sales of apparels and accessories in the PRC. It
outsources production of most of its products to
third-party suppliers while the Group produces
some of its core products with only sewing process
in small batches at its production facilities in Fujian
Province, the PRC. In addition, the Group engaged
in the production and sale of medical gowns and
medical facial masks (“PPE”) from February 2020 to
December 2021.

The Group’s operating activities do not generate any
emissions or wastes that would severely pollute the
environment. The Group is aware that it does not
directly control most of the environmental impacts
arising from its operations but it seeks to manage
its indirect environmental impact by improving
environmental awareness of its employees,
suppliers, customers and other business partners in
the supply chain.

Emissions

The Group outsources productions of most of its
products and does not own its vehicle fleets. The
Group does not produce any hazardous wastes
from its operating activities and greenhouse gas
emissions from its operating activities are limited
which are mainly from energy consumption and
employee travels. The Group implements a low-
carbon policy and encourages its employees to
conserve energy where practicable, including
shutting or minimizing the use of air conditioning
and lighting during non-office hours.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has complied with all applicable environmental
laws and regulations, and was not subject to any
fine, penalty, investigation or prosecution for non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELES ()

According to the key performance indicators RIE _E AR BB 8E 27 AT S B SR E BUEIE
(the “KPIs”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing ((FARERIER ) - NEEIDm
Rules, the Group’s performance on sustainable EEAFEERTENREHMMNAT
development in terms of emissions are summarised
below:
KPIs For the e year ended 31 December
BREN BE+=-A=t—HL=FE
cfed
2022 2021
—E-fF =
A1.1 Type of emission There was no material emission from the Group’s
Penma Ry operating activities. \
REESERSW BB
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions Greenhouse gas emissions from the Group’s
and intensity operating activities are limited which are mainly from
BERBHERELTE energy consumption and employee travels.

AEEZSE LD AEREHANEIERBERBFREN
BTH=  BHREAR -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste No hazardous waste was produced from the Group’s
produced and intensity operating activities. )
EENEERENEEREE AEESEZDWRELEFEEREY -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste Apart from approximately 89 tonnes (85 tonnes for
produced and intensity the year ended 31 December 2021) scrap fabrics,

EANEEREZEYAENEE  there were no other material wastes from the Group’s
production facilities during the year ended 31
December 2022.
S —— e gl H T—HIEEE - FREI8INE
(BE—_T 5+ _A=t+—HIFE 2 85M)i2
FARION + B A RS 3 A B B R

Intensity of non-hazardous waste was 0.78KG/
RMB’000 (2021: 0.84KG/RMB’000), being weight of
scrap fabrics to production cost of the Company’s
own production facilities, for the year ended 31
December 2022.
BE_ZT__F+_A=t+—HILFE BEEEY
HER0.78 TR ARETL(ZZ-—F :084F
wn/ARETIT) RARESEARRRERRE
HERAE B DL o

A1.5 Measure to mitigate emission ~ There was no material emission from the Group’s
and results achieved . operating activities.
AR R SRR ANEENSESESI|ENFHY -

A1.6 Measure to handle hazardous The Group’s operating activities do not produce
and non-hazardous waste, hazardous waste.
reduction initiatives and REBRSIE TSI EELEFEREEY) -

results achieved
ngiﬁi&ﬁiﬁggfmﬁﬁa The Group seeks to ensure the business operations
~ BHEE TE NPT RCER are environmentally friendly, making every effort to

reduce waste from every aspect of the business
activities. Leftover fabrics and samples are collected
by recyclers.
$‘§l§ﬁ<ﬁﬁﬁ1%¥?f¥ BESRRED S —U%H
WA EBE FEEEE@ ERY) - a"Jﬁ%@ﬂ&ﬁ o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

A2:

Use of Resources

The Group strives to minimize its environmental
impact by optimizing its consumption for electricity
and water, and encouraging recycling of office
supplies and other materials. These measures
help save both money for the Group and natural
resources. For wastes that cannot be avoided,
the Group strives to reuse and recycle the relevant
supplies and materials as much as possible. The
Group also aims at delivering products to retail
stores and distributors’ warehouses efficiently while
minimizing the carbon footprint of transportation.
Accordingly, the Group has been operating a
centralized logistics centre in Fujian Province to
enhance efficiency and reduce transportation
costs by better planning product distribution and
consolidating outbound product delivery.

The Group has also implemented the following
measures to foster a culture of resources
conservation awareness among its employees and
business partners:

° The Group encourages paperless working
procedures through intranet and use video-
conference system to replace avoidable
business trips and increase communication
efficiency.

° All printers in the Group’s premises are preset
for double-sided printing by default.

° The Group encourages its distributors to
switch using LED lighting for retail outlets
operated by them.

o The Group is dedicated to minimizing use of
materials and recycling any unused materials,
such as used papers, leftover fabrics,
hangers and shopping bags and carton
boxes at warehouses and shop furniture,
whenever possible.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

o The Group avoids using excessive packaging
and aim at having packaging offering
protection for its products and at the same
time appealing to customers.

° The Group maintains its air-conditioners
regularly for better performance and an
average indoor temperature of 25°C in order
to minimize electricity usage.

o The Group uses papers from responsible
sources to print its annual and interim reports.

The Group also adopts the following measures to
minimize the use of fabrics, costs and waste:

° The Group uses automated fabric-cutting
machines with computerized program to fully
utilize fabrics.

° The Group provides training to workers to
enhance sewing quality and avoid wastage.

According to the KPIs set out in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules, the Group’s performance on
sustainable development in terms of resources
utilization is summarized below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B - tERERERSE ()

(@) Apparel business

KPIs

BAREN

B

A2 .1 Electricity
consumption
RER

A2.2 Water
consumption
FEKE

A2.3 Energy use
efficiency
initiatives
and results
achieved
BEIR(E A& e
REISGiEE
xR

Consumption quantity
EFEE

Intensity (based on
total annual sales of
the Group)

7E (REXEEL
FIHERTEE)

Consumption quantity
HEE

Intensity (based on
total annual sales of
the Group)

7R (REXAEES
FIHEHERBTE)

(@) MRERH

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLHFE

2022 2021
g — g%
3,111,350 2,700,983
kilowatt hours kilowatt hours
TRE TRE
2.6255 1.9677
kilowatt hours kilowatt hours
/RMB’000 /RMB’000
TR, FEE
AREETTT AREET T
22,235m? 32,190m?
K SR
0.0188m? 0.0235m?
/RMB’000 /RMB’000
SRS SHKS
AREBTIT AREFIT

Electricity consumption varies depending on weather and
product dispatch schedules. The Group is committed to
minimizing the use of electricity by taking the measures
mentioned in section A2 above.

BIHRERURNAR L EmAEE - AEBHIBIBIX

HR X5 A2 Bt i e R P RE A BT o

The increase in the Group’s total electricity consumption in
2022 was mainly attributable to a larger office in Guangzhou.
AEEEREEN _T__FAMEMLEZEaNEEAS

WENEME AR DE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELES ()

KPIs For the year ended 31 December
BREN BET-A=1+T—HLEE
e 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-_—F

A2.4 Water efficiency  Water consumption of the Group varies depending on mainly

enhancement number of employees. The Group is committed to conserving

initiatives water resources by promoting environmental awareness

and results among its employees.

achieved REEZFKEFZEORNEEB AR - REEH N BEBR

Ak amiEr ®EERRER - SHLKER -

REISGiEER

=3 The decrease in the Group’s total water consumption in 2022

was attributable to the Group’s logistic centers.
REBRFKENR T - _FHMRDTIHNAEEYRHT
ORI o

A2.5 Total packaging The Group reuses all cartoon boxes used for products
materials used  purchased from suppliers for different purposes in
for finished its operations including packaging of finished goods.
goods and Accordingly, only an insignificant portion of the cartoon boxes
intensity the Group used for finished goods were purchased by the

B @ETE®  Group itself. In addition, the Group considers that it is not

EMEIREE  practical to measure the weights of other packaging materials

&N used, like duct tape and plastic bags.
REBEREEEREIEF HATE R EFRENERNEMS
ETRAR - BIEEERKS - Al - AEEB FHEAR
BIRK mEVARAELL PIRE K It - AEBERABEEEME
RABEEME (NERHERERR) WEETYERT °

Total package materials, including cartoon boxes, plastic bags
and tapes, purchased during the year ended 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB3.8 million
and RMB2.5 million, respectively.
REE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—AKk-T-__F+_A
=T —HIEFER  RENBEMAERE (2B - 28
KEBE)DRAAREISEETEARK 25858 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B - tERERERSE ()

(b)

PPE husiness

(b)

The Group has commenced the production
and sale of PPE in February 2020. Operation
scale of PPE had been downsized in 2021
due to the significant drop in market demand
and market price of PPE, and subsequently
discontinued the PPE business in December
2021. Electricity, water and packing material
consumptions for PPE business are

summarized below:

Electricity
consumption

MEE

A2.2

Water
consumption

FEKE

A2.3 Energy use
efficiency
initiatives

and results
achieved
BEIR{E AR E
REISGiEER
R

Cabbeen Fashion Limited | 100

Consumption quantity
HAEE

Intensity (based on total sales
of PPE)

ZE (REBEAEXEBHE
ERETH)

Consumption quantity
HREE

Intensity (based on total sales
of PPE)
TR (BRBEAEEEEE

HEERTE)

The Group is committed to m

{8 A Bh R85l 3 15

REBR _ZE-_FTFE_AHES
ERHEEAERE KT
——F - AAERENEES
REMSHERKETHERKET
BmBRMGER WEBRZZ
——F+-_AEEKRIEEAAE
REBE - EAEREEBL
SEHFEME 77~ KR BEM B
LU

For the year ended
31 December 2021
BE-—ZT-_—-%+=A
=+—HLEE

950,814
kilowatt hours
TRE

28.076

kilowatt hours/RMB’000
TR

AR®ETTT

5,322 m?
MK

0.157m3/RMB’000

kS
ARETFTT

inimizing the use of electricity by

taking the measures mentioned in section A2 above.
REBE N RIBE BRI XA 8512 & 2 FE i AR A] s iR A

-

| Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELES ()

For the year ended

KPIs 31 December 2021
BREN BE-ZT--5+=A
e =+—BILFE
A2.4 Water efficiency The Group is committed to conserving water resources by
enhancement promoting environmental awareness among its employees.
initiatives AEBEF NN BERIESHE INIRREBAGHLKER -
and results
achieved
KR Tt
P&l RS
R
A2.5 Total packaging The Group reuses all cartoon boxes used for products
materials used  purchased from suppliers for different purposes in its
for finished operations including packaging of finished goods. Accordingly,
goods and only an insignificant portion of the cartoon boxes the Group
intensity used for finished goods were purchased by the Group itself.

B WATEE  Inaddition, the Group considers that it is not practical to

EHRBEE  measure the weights of other packaging materials used, like

rEE duct tape and plastic bags.
REEREEBETFEEFNAMEREEHRENEROES
ETRIAR - BREEERND - Bt - ARERSHKEAR
KA BAELL BT TERK © It AEERBEEEME
RABEEME (NERHRERR) WEETYERT °

Total package materials, including cartoon boxes, plastic bags
and tapes, purchased during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB1.6 million.
REBZE-ZT-—F+_A=+—HBILFER  KENBEM
KHER (BIEEME - BHERBT) RARK16BET -

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources A3 : BIERXRER
Save as disclosed in sections A2 above, the Group’s Br EXCEAENFIETEEIN 0 AEER
operating activities have no significant impact on the LIERBHIRIRE R RAE R EE XD
environment and natural resources. Tl o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

A4:

Climate change

Climate change has been a worldwide growing issue
in recent years. Extreme weather conditions such
as heatwave, shortened winter seasons, rainstorm,
and flooding may affect the Group’s business
operations. In case of extreme weather conditions,
special working arrangements in accordance with
government regulations were followed to protect
the Group’s employees. In addition, the Group has
adopted multiple ordering strategy and has been
working with suppliers for quicker production cycle
to deal with quick replenished orders based on
market and changing climate conditions.

On the other hand, the Group is not involved in
large-scale production activities and does not
consume a lot of energy or generate a large amount
of emissions. Although the Group’s business and
products do not severely pollute the environment,
the Group is still committed to minimise energy and
material consumption and adopted various other
measures to save resources.

The Group continues to monitor the climate related
risks regularly and implement relevant measures to
minimise the potential impact of climate change.
Currently, it is expected that potential extreme
weather conditions and change in environmental-
related regulations do not directly impose material
threat to the Group’s operations.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

102

A4 :

mizgt

T 2RI REEL o BRimK
FACTINBOR ~ LFHERE - FHSOHK
FRREFEREENEBEE - RBEY
BmRRAMN - NEBEEIRRBTRE
HERNITERBEUNREEES - UL
Sh > REBD R Z W] BRE - W H
HIER A EINRAEERAS - % EE™

5 M AE E B RAR R REZHTERT
E o

H—E - AEBEIWEY AR E
ERE A ERAZRRAEENE
BEDRED - AR SR E Y EH K E fn
BREISARE - EANKBDEIRAE
FERERNMME - X AEEERERINZIA

E i

AEEEHEEREAERZE  LEE
HEE RO EERIRZENZE - 3B
B TR AT B AR i KSR IR R S IR ARRE AR
ERBEEY EE R U A RENZERNX
BB e

Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B HERELES ()

(B) SOCIAL B) e
According to the KPIs set out in Appendix 27 BAE _E AR BB 8% 27 Fr & BE 52 45 ¥
of the Listing Rules, the Group’s performance 5 AEERHEEEMEEIRFER
on sustainable development in terms of social RAERMRESMRAOT
responsibility is summarized below:
B1: Employment Bl1: {Ef®
KPIs For the year ended 31 December
BREN BE+T-A=1t—HLEE
=R 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
B1.1 Total workforce Gender
BT HE a1l
- Male 147 264
S
- Female 186 281
pegid
Employment type
{3 bl
— Fulltime 331 b42
— Part time 2 3
Age Group
FH 4R
— Aged below 30 135 226
30BRA T
— Aged 30 - 50 181 306
30 £ 50%%
— Aged over 50 17 13
505 A E
Geographical region
P [ 13
— Mainland China 301 517
3 A 3B,
— Hong Kong 32 28
E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B - tERERERSE ()

KPIs For the year ended 31 December
BBREN BE+=-A=+—HLEFE
=R 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-——F
B1.2 Employee turnover By gender
rate 1 Bl
BIRA* ~ Male 55.5% 34.9%
St
— Female 49.6% 36.7%
g
By age Group
FheAa R
— Aged below 30 57.9% 42.0%
30BRA T
— Aged 30 - 50 47.5% 29.9%
30 £ 50%%
— Aged over 50 46.2% 8.3%
50 pRIA L
Geographical region
I [ 15,
— Mainland China 54.6% 36.9%
B
— Hong Kong 21.3% 8.8%
B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 333
employees (2021: 545). Human resources are one
of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees
as highly important.

The Group endeavors to continue to be an
attractive employer for committed employees.
The Group conducts employee satisfaction survey
periodically. It seriously considers all those valuable
feedback from employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and has also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward
the contribution of the employees to the growth
and development of the Group. The Group’s
compensation system is strictly in compliance with
the Labour Contract Law, the Labour Law and other
relevant laws and regulations, with all statutory social
security contributions being paid in full and on time.
The Group also adjusts employee salaries from time
to time according to their performance and skills
and in the light of the general compensation level in
the industry to ensure that its compensation system
is both competitive and fair. The Group ensures
that all employees are entitled to paid annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave and other statutory
leaves and holidays in accordance with the law and
safeguards employees’ basic rights.

To support our working mothers’ needs, the Group
offers new mothers options of flexi-time work
arrangement.

In addition, the Group provides long service awards
to employees that have served the Group for 5
years, 10 years and 15 years, respectively. To
enhance the sense of belongings of employees to
the Group, it also organizes various interest group
activities and gathering regularly for its employees.

B HERELES ()
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

B2: Health and Safety B2: BREERE

The Group is committed to providing safe and
healthy work environments for its employees. It also
promotes health and well-being of all employees
by encouraging employees to do more exercises
after work and organizes seminars, jogging and
yoga class to employees at its headquarters in
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province. In addition,
the Company prohibits smoking in offices and
the premises of the Group to eliminate all safety
hazards. Fire drills at the Group’s office buildings are
arranged at least once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the
Group provided free surgical masks to employees
and organized all its employees in Guangzhou and
Fujian to get Covid vaccine.

For the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022, the Company experienced no employee on
duty casualty or any other serious accident and has
been in compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations relating to its employees’ health and
safety.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B HERELES () /

B3: Development and Training B3 : R RIEII
KPIs For the year ended 31 December
BREEN BE+-A=t—HLHFE
L 2022 2021
g5 —E_—F
B3.1 Percentage of Gender
employees trained 31]
XINEIBHDE - Male 100% 100%
St
— Female 100% 100%
i
Categories
LSl
— Senior 109 175
management
BRETRE
— Middle 100 164
management
hREEE
— Others 124 206
HAh
B3.2 Average training hours  Gender
completed el
b=l 2 ~ Male o0 50
St
- Female 20 20
g
Categories
Ehll
— Senior 24 24
management
SREERE
— Middle 20 20
management
hREEE
— Others 16 16
HAh
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

B4

B5

The Group strives to motivate its employees by
providing a clear career path and opportunities
for advancement and improvement of their skills.
The Group provides pre-employment and on-the-
job training and development opportunities to staff
members. The training programs cover areas such
as accounting and tax updates, managerial and
leadership skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, workplace ethics and
training of other areas relevant to the industry
and employees’ profession. The Group aims to
foster teamwork cohesion and help equip its
employees with new skills for the changing business
environment in which the Group competes and new
challenges.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits child labour or forced
labour for any position. The Group had not and
does not employ people aged under 16 for any
positions. There was no case of violation of laws
and regulations relating to child or forced labour for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Supply Chain Management

The Group currently outsources the production of
most of its products to domestic OEMs. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had over 200 suppliers
and all of them were in the PRC.

The Group carefully selects its OEMs and requires
them to satisfy certain evaluation and assessment
criteria, including environmental protection and
sewage disposal standards. The Company manages
a list of qualified suppliers. Only suppliers that have
been assessed to be qualified in terms of safety,
quality, business reputation and other indicators are
included in the list and qualified to be engaged by
the Group.

The Group reviews its suppliers’ environmental,
and health and safety performance, among other
metrics, regularly, and inspects premises of the
suppliers to ensure they are complied with the
environmental and occupational health and safety
management requirements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Product Responsibility

It is essential that the Group provides products
to its consumers that are innovative, inspiring,
and safe. This helps fulfill its responsibilities to the
public, enhances its competitive position in the
marketplace, and retains the confidence of its
customers. Products must be designed, produced,
and serviced to the Group’s standards and should
comply with applicable regulations and contractual
obligations.

Product safety and gquality assurance process
The Group has established a supplier quality
assurance system covering supplier approval and
evaluation, quality inspection and supporting the
Group’s strategic supplier development policy. All
suppliers are required to have relevant production
licenses and pollutant discharge permit (if applicable)
and complies with relevant environmental protection
law and regulations.

OEMs are generally required to procure raw
materials, manufacture and package the Group’s
products in accordance with national standards
and the Group’s guidelines. OEMs are not allowed
to sub-contract their work to other third parties
without the Group’s prior written approval. OEMs
are required to provide quality inspection reports
issued by Fujian Institute of Fiber Inspection (@i
HH4ERERFT) or Guangzhou Fiber Product Testing
Institute (&M T4 4 Z i AIBT) on raw materials
they procured and quality inspection reports by a
third-party quality inspection institution designated
by the Group on finished products. The Group also
periodically despatches order handling and quality
control staff to its OEMs’ production sites to inspect
the production process and labour safety standards.
OEMs are required to obtain the Group’s approvals
upon its inspection of the product samples before
a volume production can be taken place and all
products must pass the quality control inspection of
the Group before delivery.

2022 %
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group had not recalled, or been required to recall,
any products for safety and health reasons, or
received any complaints in this regard.

Intellectual property rights

The Group may find counterfeit products carrying
fake “Cabbeen” trademark or other marks owned
by the Group in the market. The Group will report
to the relevant authorities and may initiate legal
proceedings to defend the ownership of its
trademarks or brands against any infringement.

Data confidentiality

The information of VIP members are managed by
the Group centrally and is only used for sales and
promotion of the Group’s products. Only relevant
personnel of customer service department and retail
stores can access information of VIP members.
The Group also uses NAT web security services
to protect its customers’ information and keep
retention logs of transactions for analysis and
investigation of security violations and breaches,
if any. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group did not have any material data security
breaches.

Employees have access to confidential information
are obliged to uphold confidentiality and this is
stipulated in employment contracts. Confidential
information shared with the Group’s suppliers,
distributors, other customers and business partners
are protected by confidentiality agreements. The
Group reserves the right to terminate relevant
agreement and take necessary legal action against
any violation.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Anti-corruption

The Group highly values honesty and integrity. The
Group provides each employee with clear guidelines
in staff handbook and organizes annual training
on prevention of corruption. Employees of the
Group may never offer, give, or accept gifts of cash
(or cash equivalents) in any business relationship
because these could be considered an illegal bribe
or kickback. Gifts and hospitality from business
partners to members of employees’ family, to those
with whom the employee has a close personal
relationship, would be treated as if they were given
to that employee as well and thus be prohibited.

The Group requires all of its distributors and
suppliers to sign anti-bribery sub-agreements when
they enter into agreements with the Group. These
anti-bribery sub-agreements impose obligations
on the distributors or suppliers and the Group to
comply with applicable laws and regulations in
relation to unfair competition and anti-bribery. The
Group is entitled to terminate the agreements with
distributors or suppliers for their non-compliance
with the terms of the anti-bribery sub-agreements.

The Group encourages whistle-blowing of
suspected corruption, fraud or money laundering
cases and offers rewards to whistle-blower if the
case is proved to be valid. Whistle-blower can
report suspected cases to any one of the directors
or vice-presidents of the Group who will then work
with the Board and/or our senior management team
to carry out necessary approaches to investigate
and solve these cases.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not find any significant risks relating
to corruption and was not subject to any confirmed
corruption cases involving the Company or any
corruption investigation or prosecution against the
Company or any of its employees.

2022 % | 111

B7 :

B HERELES ()

RES

REBHEEEHETE - ~EENE
IFMERFEEIRGILE TREULE
THRMHEAENIES - REEE TREW
EBRARP GRS G TIEXRE
(KR FEY) BRI - LT HR
RIDEMRERSEA - IERBHME IR
%Tiﬁiﬁlﬁﬁ%fﬁfa%ﬂ’]/\i B ixfe
um& THESSHRGE/BMRZE T
%31:11:& EITHAMEEELL -

REBESREFA R HE LERER
EARSEE R W ER RS RED LR
ﬁjﬁtﬁ%- o bt LE R R RO B 75 hh i AR

CEEESHER RAREERTE
WEEET =B KRR e E A
BER - AEEARREHE SRR
B ST LE R thh s B (GRS T 4% L ER AR
FHATE -

AEBEZBERSRES - MEFLE
fEZ - I w28 A B2 (L 28R (1 28 3%
BE) RBRATAAKRBERNESSK

BlEEREREER ZEFHAEE
BEREEREEE N R RERE BN
/\T’E T B AE I ARRA B E

%)‘ﬂ

BE_ZT-__H+-RA=1+—HL*F
B AARWEEREEE)SH BN
EXE R BARE W ES M AR 2R
BARFRAARFSEERREEET
ERESHE AR

FERGHERAT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
B - tERERERSE ()

Community investment

The Group cares about the community and
encourages its employees to participate in charity
events to help people in need. The Group makes
donations to education associations and charitable
organizations and encourages staff participation in
volunteer work. Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of
the Board, also actively participates in charity events
and has been an anti-drug ambassador for Shishi
City, Fujian Province since 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
donated RMB11.6 million cash to charitable
organizations approved by the local governments,
as well as medical masks, pandemic prevention
supplies and clothes to people in need.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 127 to 262,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 184 to 189.
DRJFE BN T2 RE 184 F 189 EA)E5HEE

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

Revenue principally comprises sales of apparel
goods to distributors and via consignees.
WaEF2aERSHE A BRI HERES

oA °

Each year, the Group enters into a framework
distribution agreement or a consignment
agreement with each distributor or consignee
and manufactures and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders.
ERESFREZHHPIR BB LIERD HIH
AR - WRBESIRERT B AR EE KX
SHEHEmM °

For sales to distributors, once the products are
collected from the designated warehouse by the
distributor, the control of the goods is considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised at that point.
HADEEELHNEENS - Em—BBDHER
RIETRERN  EHEmMEIRERREE
BT o - WHRZEEERERRER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHAE RS RN B ZIZFBFBA T ImE

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over revenue recognition;
FHEEIRER MU R S A BT YRR
At B OB IERR

° inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance,
applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
return arrangements to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
REBEAEERE HEY HE MAHEE O BE - A
THEER NGRS BRI REXH K
o AR BE R MEAIEERE T B #®E
Mm2ZHRTETERNNRETEEEENH KR

FERIRZE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B ZBERRE ()

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 184 to 189.

DA ISR AL 2 R E 184 F 189 AR 71K °

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

For sales via consignees, once the products are
sold to end users by the consignee, the control of
the goods is considered to have been transferred
to the consignee and revenue is recognised at
that point. The Group receives confirmations
from consignees on a monthly basis of both the
transaction amounts and balances due to the
Group.

HBEEBRHEBELNHEN S - Em—BEBR
HEETRmAPS  AEEmOZEGIESEAD
ERTRIER TR ERERRG - EXE
BARKREREER S R LENEEENIA
ERRERE -

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and because
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management
to meet specific targets or expectations.
BIEWR TR REREZER  BRRAER
EEBNEREVIEREZ — MEFILREERE
RIERETTE B AR TR HA T #2 12 W an W SR B el Y [
BRR -

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;

BREAELEFBLEMER S EMBBAXIFX
- BRESEIREREENEGAERER
73 B XA 8 10 P B A B B R ATAR R AR

FEARHENRERZEEREREE NI
IR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
specific revenue transactions around the
financial year end had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAEEFBEBMEISHEEASIIHFX
- BRESEIREREENEGAERER
73 B XA 8 10 P B A B R ATAR R AR
FRERANENHTERRZR ZEEERNEE N
R EAFEI AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 184 to 189.

R A IS HRE N2 R E 184 F

189 EBIZ TR ©

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;
BREAREEF B ARIHEQNES - RIE
2 $H S B 17 5 P B Y IR R E R s T R B B
EAERNHEETH - KB BFEE R H
EEHRERE D HE RO ERE &
HA MR X - SHERMRFE AR EE
B2 A EREE O R EAEER

identifying significant credit notes issued and
sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
%%WW@E?X%%%T%¢%%&WEE
ERENHERE - WinEEA X

%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁzmamﬁﬁﬁA‘ﬁwmﬁ
EREE T BHARAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B BENERE (18)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 184 to 189.
DRJFE BTN T2 K E 184 F 189 AA)E 5T

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

° inspecting significant manual adjustments
to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BERBERANH WS PIIENEZFERHE
AEREERELERARNIESR M ERARE
S5 ERAR R S Xt -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

Expected credit loss allowances for trade and bills receivables

EZRWREREREENRREEEERE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 to

1 68 and page 176.

ibr e B SRR AT 17 N E 167 2 1688 » RE 175 BAVEFIHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREXLEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EZPNERELE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross
trade and bills receivables arose from sales of
apparel goods amounted to RMB747,830,000,
against which an allowance of RMB98,832,000
for expected credit losses (ECLs) was recorded.
RZZZZF+ZHA=1—RH B5£EHHEER
HEmMEKHNE ZREYGIERERERERR/A
¥ 747,830,000 7T © hUtEkGTREAE EEER
1# AR 98,832,000 7T ©

Management measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs of the trade and
bills receivables based on estimated loss rates
for each category of trade and bills receivables
grouped according to shared credit risk
characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade and bills receivable
balances, the repayment history of the Group’s
customers, current market conditions, and
forward-looking information. Such assessment
involves significant management judgement and
estimation.
EREERRIBREERRSENEGRE ZRYKR
E&fwmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ﬁg%ﬁ%ﬁ e
TRAFNE SR MR R ERETED
Wﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁoﬁ?@ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%w
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ ERREERE - EEEEPHEN
FLEk ~ BRI R&mﬁﬁéﬂﬁfm RS
B RER BB ARG R ALET -

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit
loss allowance for trade and bills receivables included
the following:

BMAHEE 5 R GIE BN BN EREEEER
ENEZEFEENT A :

o evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standard;
S2ERTEAEANRTE - AEEEEMGEE
EEERENBER

° obtaining an understanding on the key data and

assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by the Group, including the historical
default data and management’s estimated loss
rate;

THRESEERMNEREEEBELKERD
F%ﬁxéégkliﬁj*“  BREELENBBEARER
BfhatEEEx
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B ZBERRE ()

EZRWREREREENRREEEERE

Expected credit loss allowances for trade and bills receivables

168, and page 175.

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 to

R A SRR G 17 RE 167 21688 » UAKE 175 BEHIE51IHFE ©

The Key Audit Matter
BREELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EZPNERELE

We identified the expected credit loss allowance
for trade and bills receivables as a key audit
matter because determining the level of the loss
allowance requires the exercise of significant
management judgement, which is inherently
subjective.

BB ZREWIE R ERE BN TRREE SR
BERPAERESER  DHNERENET
ER R TR REL T BB A A -

assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimates of loss allowances by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current market conditions and forward-
looking information, and assessing, on a sample
basis, whether items in the trade and bills
receivables ageing reports were classified in
the appropriate ageing category by comparing
individual items therein with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes or
monthly confirmations from consignees; and
FREHESEERNGLAEBEFTOERTE
EREMTHEERENER S  BRARESL
BERABBENERT FEELBEEXESRE
BRI LAIEEEETEES AR - REE
2 FE WK IE [ JE W R 1R AR i ¥ s W RSB LI B
AR X (BEEEERREREEH
BA®RE) LR - M EEBERRREA
HERENDBEEENREKRER : &

re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2022 based on
the Group’s ECL allowance policies.
BEEEERHEEEERBRE  ENTHE
722022 F 12 A 31 HAVEIBHHE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 174.

BREE TS IRAN G 16 RE 174 ERIEFTHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can
be volatile with consumer demand changing
according to current fashion trends

2 i“ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ‘i@?ﬁﬁ@T Hjiﬁdﬁb

The Group typically sells or disposes of off-
season inventories at a markdown from the
original price to make room for new season
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some inventories may fall
below their purchase costs.
ERE-RTBHEXRBABTFE - LREE
WAMEEEREHZRE - Bt - T FENER
AREEHSERETRBRAR

Management considers several factors in
determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical
rates of sales at normal price levels and at
markdown prices, and the channels available for
selling off-season inventories.
EEENETEENTFERBEKTIRZERZERA
= BEEEREK REFEBRKTERIRRERS
ROELHEXRANHEBTFENAIBRE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BT ERENEZRFEEATNIMH

assessing whether the inventory provisions at
the reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on percentages and other parameters
in the Group’s inventory provision policy and
considering the application of the Group’s
inventory provision policy with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BIEEEEFERBEE Eﬁﬁ"tb&ﬁﬁﬂ%%{
BNAEFEREBN2ER TS ERNRATE
ZREESEFERBBRNER - #EUAFHHR
BEAHNFERBRESKREESBTFERE
B —Bm S E

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the inventory ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
items selected with relevant purchase
documents;

RECREAE Liﬁtbfﬁﬁ“ 518 B R IRBIRER
B AR A ER BB A ﬁrfﬂﬁ%iﬁiﬂhmlﬁﬁ
EREAEE HERE v%ﬂf‘alJ ;

performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2021 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
process;
FRAR_E_—FT_A=+—BZEEE
BEREAFE 2 EEETHE - rsajmﬁmw
n¥1$ﬁ£¥%&/ﬂ&%§1ﬁ/}lﬁi27 E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B ZBERRE ()

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 174.

BREE TS IRAN G 16 RE 174 EHIEFTEUE °

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement
exercised by management in determining the
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which
involves predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be unsold at the end of each season
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off-
season inventories on a discounted basis through
outlets and other channels in future years. Both
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.
BPMEFERENREREZSEE E%%EE
E?‘imk T S BE K R TTEE A HE
B REANSEZEERRENTFS %@&EA
AR EFEBITHEREMRERBELEZEFHB
FEEMFBIELOF - ZFREHFERE T
HEM R BERERIPTRR

° evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s expectation
of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
prices and the corresponding expectation of
markdowns with historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years
provided by management; and
BRI E IR EE A ARA e A R RKIZE A
{ﬂﬂﬂj%ﬁ’]ﬁ 5 218 778 B S AE FE B T HO TR BR
HEREMMRHNE R AT FENE L H
EHELTNEE  FEEEENFERER
® M

° enquiring of the management and senior
members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
AEREREEEGNRREEASRABEH
PRI BFFEEINEAERES - I
BREAEELREFEREERERSE B RIEE
RBNBRER °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIARZHENHE (1])

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERaREMZENRR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —F+ - =+—HIFF)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA B ¥ZI7)

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiaE AR®ET T AR®TTT
Revenue W 2 1,185,049 1,372,662
Cost of sales 85 & BN (678,055) (743,825)
Gross profit EX 506,994 628,837
Personal protective (BN e
equipment revenue g - 33,865
Personal protective (BN =%
equipment cost 8 - (31,840)
Other income HAUA 4 14,084 68,645
Selling and distribution HE DX
expenses (235,901) (290,618)
Administrative and other TR R EAMAEERY
operating expenses (341,249) (153,589)
(Loss)/profit from R (B8 wR
operations (56,072) 255,300
Finance costs BB A 5(a) (21,332) (16,179)
Share of loss of an associate -l — & A Rl 2 B8 (2,991) (1,608)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E5E) %R 5 (80,395) 237,513
Income tax Frign 6(a) 5,160 (68,872)
(Loss)/profit for the year  F£ R (EF#E) %F (75,235) 168,641
Attributable to: U & 75 MG -
Equity shareholders of RN RIRERRARER
the Company (85,120) 164,192
Non-controlling interests PR S 9,885 4,449
(Loss)/profit for the year SR (&#E) %F (75,235) 168,641
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

GFERRAMZENGER ()

for the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F = —4F 1+ —-A=+—HIFF)Z
(Expressed in Renminbij) (LAA #5171 )

2022 2021
—E__—F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PiaE ARET T AR®T T
Other comprehensive FREMZEKE
income for the year
ltem that are or may R RERE R EF DR
be reclassified subsequently  EJiE8zAIER ¢
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on — HAE B A IR S
translation of the financial EBMPE®RE
statements of operations HIME H =58
outside the Mainland
China 1,163 2,733
Total comprehensive FREEBREE
income for the year (74,072) 171,374
Attributable to: AT & 75 L -
Equity shareholders of RNREIRERRARER
the Company (83,957) 166,925
Non-controlling interests SRR A 9,885 4,449
Total comprehensive FRE2EKHEE
income for the year (74,072) 171,374
(Loss)/earnings per share & (Fi8) BF (AR¥S) 9
(RMB cents)
Basic BN (12.73) 24.56
Diluted i3k (12.73) 24.52

The notes on pages 134 to 262 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 25(b).

KT EE 25(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBIKRR

(Expressed in Renminbj) (AN EE#57R)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BI5E AR®T AR®ET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REYE 10 113,242 103,118
Property, plant and Mz - BB R
equipment 11 302,725 266,439
Intangible assets B EE 12 40,734 43,320
Prepayments for acquisiton  EEEME KR ER
of plant and equipment SEANE/ O E - 240
Interest in an associate R —RE AR e 13 119,592 117,145
Deferred tax assets EIETIEE BE 15(b) 83,281 45,596
e 659,574 | 575858
Current assets RBEE
Inventories EA 16 381,575 530,955
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H b EKGKIA 17 727,067 711,074
Deposits with banks with REIEARE =@ A
original maturity date HIERTTIF 3K
over three months 145,000 285,000
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITIFR 18 72,010 114,143
Cash and cash equivalents ~ R& MIREFEY 19 212,784 251,671
S SR 1,538,436 | 1,892,843
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 20 270,218 251,174
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E At FE (N 58 21 523,132 717,325
Current taxation BNEATH I8 15(a) 31,298 33,306
Lease Liabilities HEAE 22 15,398 13,868
T SUT 840,046 | 1,015,673
_Netcurrentassets nEBEEFE | 698,390 | 877170
Total assets less current ZEELAERABHERS
liabilities 1,357,964 1,453,028
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 22 31,550 27,708
T SRR 31,560 27,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

meMERAR ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A #5177 )

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T AREFT
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,326,414 1,425,320
CAPITAL AND RESERVES E&#&Kkf#E 25
Share capital &N 5,214 5,214
Reserves [ 1,297,858 1,406,775
Total equity attributable ARATERERR
to equity shareholders PE(L 4R a
of the Company 1,303,072 1,411,989
Non-controlling interests  JEIERR &R 23,342 13,331
TOTAL EQUITY RS 1,326,414 1,425,320

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEZEER-_T=_=F=F++tBHERKE
directors on 17 March 2023. Fz& -

Mr. Ziming Yang Mr. Rongqin Ke

BERALE FIREER &
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TTBABAFHTEE HITEE

The notes on pages 134 to 262 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAaERERXR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —F+ - =+—HIFF)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA B ¥ZI7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAFERRFER
Capital Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital Statutory Exchange Refained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests Total
FER
ha  RGGE REEE EARE  ieRE ENBE REEN 0 & 0 B8 4
Note RVBO00  RMB0O0  RMB'0O0  RMBOOO0  RMBOO0  RWB'000  RMBO00  RMBOOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'000
iF ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
As at 1 January 2021 A-E_-F-F-R 5214 9.1% B 0068 755% (3,161) 1214400 1,321,635 8097 1309732
Changes in equity WoB--k
for 2021: e
Proit for e year ERER - - - - - - 16410 14192 4449 B84t
Other comprehensive EREfRENE
income for the year - - - - - 2133 - 2133 - 2133
Totd comprefensive EMREMALE
wowfbewr e - - % R 085 4 g
Dividend declared BERRE 250) = = = = = - (16571 (71657 - (16571)
Equtysetled shaebased ~ BEAENRNG
tiansactons RERHNRS ) - - - - - - - SR [ A
Appropriafon to #aiTh
statutory resnves N - - - - 6714 - br 4y - - -
Captl declcion by HERERHANER
anon-controling nterest - - - - - - - - (394) (394)
Asat 31 December 2021 and  R=S=-%+Zf=1-AR
As at 1 January 2022 W-F-ZF-f-H 5214 9,19 304 20068 142678 (428) 1234878 1411989 13331 1425320
Changes in equity WoB-ZF
for 2022: HiEReg
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - [0 @510 9% (1529
Other comprehensive EREM2ENG
income for the year - - - - - 1,163 - 1,163 - 1,163
Tota comprehensive EREEREE
e e e e e ) R 985
Dividend declaed EEHKE 20 - - - - - - (4960 (24960) (24,960)
Tansferbetweenteseves  ERmEA - - - - - - - - - -
Equtyseted sharebased~ REMRN
transactons RERMRA i) - - - - - - - - 126 126
Appropriaton o ERETRE
stafutory reserves - - - - 103 - (103 - - -
As at 31 December 2022 W-B-ZE-R=1-R 5214 9,19 /4 20068 142781 735 1124605 12303072 23342 1326414

The notes on pages 134 to 262 form part of these financial 25 134 & 262 BT &M iT Az S Rz 4AK
statements. o o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FeHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F = —4F 1+ —-A=+—HIFF)Z

(Expressed in Renminbij) (LAA #5171 )

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PiaE ARET T AR®ET T
Operating activities KETH
Cash (used in)/generated RS (FTA) 19(b) (56,717) 85,080
from operations Fri5ii<e
Income tax paid BT (33,236) (88,789)
Net cash used in RETERFTRAFERS
operating activities (89,953) (8,709)
Investing activities RETH
Payment for the purchase of EEE W% - E M
property, plant FAERR
and equipment (84,066) (67,262)
Payment for the purchase BEELEEMNK
of intangible assets (3,490) (8,337)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - BE&
property, plant and REFTSRIE
equipment 4,544 2,772
Net decrease of deposits REEHA=EA
with banks with original HIERTTIF 3K
maturity date over B EEE
three months 140,000 8,357
Net decrease/(increase) in EEBIRITIER
pledged bank deposits B () FEE 42,133 (21,746)
Loans to an associate [ —EEEE A RIREE R (3,300) (12,100)
Interest received B AR 14,500 8,636
Net cash generated from/  REZFEFFEB (FrH)FRE
(used in) investing activities 110,321 (84,680)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEHKAER (1)

for the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F - —F+ - =+—HIFF)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA B ¥ZI7)

2022 2021
—E__F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BI5E AR®T AR®ET T
Financing activities L& T B
Proceeds from bank RITIEKFTEEIE
borrowings 19(c) 270,218 -
Repayment of bank EERITER
borrowings 19(c) (275,455) (92,690)
Dividends paid BERRE 25(b) (24,960) (76,571)
Interest paid 2ERFE 19(0) (18,801) (14,580)
Capital element of lease ENEENERTD
rentals paid 19(c) (8,882) (4,109)
Interest element of lease BENHEENFEE D
rentals paid 19(c) (2,002) (587)
Net cash used in A& EE T A
financing activities FHE 19(c) (59,882) (188,537)
Net decrease in RERFESEEY
cash and cash W R
equivalents (39,514) (276,926)
Cash and cash equivalents R"—B—HHEREK
at 1 January ReZEY 251,671 529,037
Effect of foreign exchange HNERE R F B B
rate changes 627 (440)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=BA=+—H
at 31 December NWEERASEEY 19(a) 212,784 251,671

The notes on pages 134 to 262 form part of these financial

statements.

2022%% | 133 | FEBRGHERAT

E 134 £ 262 BFTH I RZF Y BRKRAEK
#B e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M ¥ 8RN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

1

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC"). RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the
Company'’s subsidiaries outside the Mainland
China are Hong Kong dollars.

These financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below
(note 1(g)).

2022 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 29.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendments to IAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment: Proceeds before
intended use

U Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent
assets: Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of
the adoption of the amended IFRSs are
discussed below:
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BRI (6)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from
deducting the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for
use from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds
and the related costs should be included
in profit and loss. The amendments do not
have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not sell items
produced before an item of property, plant
and equipment is available for use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assefs:
Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a
contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous,
the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only
incremental costs when determining whether
a contract was onerous. In accordance
with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all
its obligations at 1 January 2022, and has
concluded that none of them is onerous.

2022 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continueq)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interest, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

1

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(l)
(i)). Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

1))

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 26(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 1(v/(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)
Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Investment property

Investment properties are buildings and land
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(k)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of purchased investment
properties comprises their purchases price
and any direct attributable expenditures.
Investment properties are accounted for
using the cost model and stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss (see note 1(l)(ii)). The cost of investment
properties, less their estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment loss, is
depreciated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life as follow:

° Interests in remaining term
leasehold land of the lease
° Buildings 20 years

Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(v)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (note 1(I)(ii)):

- buildings, including buildings held
for own use which are situated on
leasehold land and right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying
building; and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of
property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(x)).

ltems may be produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. The proceeds from selling
any such items and the related costs are
recognised in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

- Ownership interests Remaining term

in land and other of the lease
properties held
for own use
carried at cost
- Leasehold Shorter of 3 - 5 years
improvements or remaining term
of the lease
- Plant and machinery 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years

and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

1]

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(l)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software
Trademark

5-10 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1]

(k)

Intangible assets (Continuead)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Leased assets (Continued)

(M

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and

1))

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately
from the right-of-use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt
securities carried at amortised cost
(see notes 1(g), 1(v)(i) and 1(l)(i). Any
difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits
is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Leased assets (Continued)

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(M

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of
a lease or the consideration for a lease
that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that
occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the
change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

(M

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of
financial position, the current portion of
long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(M

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, including
loans to an associate, which
are held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of
principal and interest);

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including units in bond funds,
equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEREBUR (@)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREE#REZ)
(Continued)
() Credit losses from financial i) «MIR -SHNEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERKREZEES
receivables (Continued) H|E)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (&
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)

(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial i) &£MIHR -eVBEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERBEREZEES
receivables (Continued) |
Significant increases in credit risk EERBAE EFH

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 180 days
past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEREBUR (@)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREE#REZ)
(Continued)
() Credit losses from financial i) «MIR -SHNEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERKREZEES
receivables (Continued) H|E)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due date;

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

= existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEEHHER @
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)

(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial N £MIR -SHEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERKRAZEES
receivables (Continued) 1€ -))

Depending on the nature of the AR EBITAMNME -
financial instruments, the assessment = E R AR _EFA RS
of a significant increase in credit risk Th g @ Rl B A 5k 2k Hﬁ/ﬁ
is performed on either an individual LTT fin 51t R 4t

basis or a collective basis. When AT imﬂlﬂﬂ'ﬁk,\
the assessment is performed on B 015 B & e 2k (4nie AR
a collective basis, the financial A RAEE BT AR) 1T
instruments are grouped based on D o

shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1]

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(v)(ii) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEREBUR (@)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREE#REZ)
(Continued)
() Credit losses from financial i) «MIR -SHNEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERKREZEES
receivables (Continued) H|E)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

- the disappearance of an active

market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (&
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)

(Continued)

() Credit losses from financial i) &£MIHR -eVBEER
instruments, contract assets and lease HERBEREZEES
receivables (Continued) |
Write-off policy EIENEE S

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable or
contract asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

investment property;

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associate in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (&
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREEREZ)
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EHtERERERE
(Continued) (&)
— Calculation of recoverable - FrE K E S5
amount
The recoverable amount of an EEMIKE S
asset is the greater of its fair BREAFEREE
value less costs of disposal and AERFERAEEBELZ

value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments
of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A
portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done
on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group
of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESHEEm)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREE#REZ)
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets () HMFRBEERE
(Continued) (&)
— Recognition of impairment losses - ERBEEE
An impairment loss is recognised WMEESHTEIR
in profit or loss if the carrying TEABUMNERR

amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or

BEEBANKEE
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AeELBEMER
MR EEER - &
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B (RHEEN)
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group of units) on a pro rata basis, tEEMNREE-

except that the carrying value of EEEMNKREETT
an asset will not be reduced below EREEREATF
its individual fair value less costs of BB & A (1A
disposal (if measurable) or value in geEt2) SERAEE

use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESHBR (&)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets n EESRREE#REZ)
(Continued)
(ili) Interim financial reporting and (i) M BHEERREE
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1()(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.

REZEH X ZHER
RE]FEH LA - KE
B ARIZ B & 51 &5 E
R 34 355 H RIRT B4R &5
LRSI /R BN MELA A
FRIFE R E o R EH
K ANE B e 6 E A
o R RAEC A
B B B KT I &
A8IR] (ZBTE 1000)) °

7+ R fE] 5L 7 2R T 18
ZRIEERT 2 ERREHY
EI7E[E] - RlIfE (& 7 3% F
BT I 19 57 1B F SR A8 A B
A1 B (B 1 HE AR R B T 1
TR A ERE L 1
T &R LB EER

20225% | 1713 FERGHERAS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, in the
process of production for such sale or in the
form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering
of services. Inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

A right to recover returned goods is
recognised for the right to recover products
from customers sold with a right of return. It
is measured in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(v)(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

(0)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see
note 1(0)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit
losses (see note 1())(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(n)

(@)

N

Interest-hearing horrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Trade and other payables (other than
refund liabilities)

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Refund liabilities arising from rights of returns
and volume rebates are recognised in
accordance with the policy set out in note

1(v)().

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance,
with policy set out in note 1())(i).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Employee henefits

(M

(i)

Short-term employee henefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-hased payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(Continued)

(s)

Employee henefits continuea)

(i)

(i

Share-based payments (Continued)
During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(M

Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(M)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(Continued)

() Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority

on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(M

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is
expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that
would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is
limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(v)

(i)  Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of continuing
with thefulfilling the contract. The cost
of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

The group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a
gross basis. In determining whether the group
acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the group's ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EERHEEW

(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued) vy B@RHEMKAE)
Revenue is recognised when control over EEMIRBHZESIERANEE
a product or service is transferred to the TEHAERERMNERHBRESRE
customers at the amount of promised (PEERXRE=ZFUBMHNEEHE
consideration to which the Group is expected (FRIBE R ([ ER |) ok H fth 55
to be entitled, excluding those amounts EB))BREREFPR - AT
collected on behalf of third parties such as R o

value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and BRERNEE Yz & H AU AR
other income recognition polices are as BURHE— R IBEINNT -
follows:

() Sale of goods M WERLA

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and VAT.

Payment terms and conditions vary by
customers and are based on the billing
schedule established in the contracts
or purchase orders with customers,
but the Group generally provides credit
terms to customers within nine months
upon customer acceptance. The
Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing
component as the period of financing
is 12 months or less.

2022%% | 189 | FEBRMGHRAT

Wk R P ESLZEWE
miSHER - WaED B8
mHEEBE HHRE
= T ENRIE(ER -

N O
)

\

< SRR S 40 B AL = i
£ WREREEPFFIMH
& #) R il 7T &9 A 3R A
X MEARE-BRER
BEMERNEAARZTPLR
HEEEGR - AEEFNA
B B %5 5 22 RI 55 15 557
FERTHERER
it TREARREROH
THFERBYE  REA
ABREHRAT @A
B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(M

Sale of goods (Continued)

For sales to distributors or on
e-commerce platforms, the Group
offers customers rights of return for
a specific period upon acceptance.
It also offers sales rebates to certain
major customers when their purchases
reach an agreed threshold. Such rights
of return and sales rebates give rise
to variable consideration. The Group
uses an expected value approach to
estimate variable consideration based
on the Group's current and future
performance expectations and all
information that is reasonably available.
This estimated amount is included in
the transaction price to the extent it
is highly probable that a significant
reversal of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is resolved. At
the time of sale, the Group recognises
revenue after taking into account
adjustment to transaction price arising
from returns and rebates as mentioned
above. A refund liability is recognised
for the expected returns and rebates,
and is included in other payables (see
note 21). A right to recover returned
goods (included in inventories,
see note 16) and corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales are also
recognised for the right to recover
products from customers. This right to
recover returned goods is measured
at the former carrying amount of the
inventory less any expected costs
to recover goods (including potential
decreases in the value of the returned
goods).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(M

(ii)

(1)

Sale of goods (Continued)
In addition, the group has applied the
following practical expedients:

For sales contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or
less, the Group has not disclosed the
information related to the aggregated
amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance
obligations in accordance with
paragraph 121(a) of IFRS 15.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note

1))

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned
goods from distributors sold through
the Group’s online shops are taken
possession and accepted by end
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(Continued)
(v)
(iv)
)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the
useful lives of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating
leases

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they
are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(vi) Personal protective equipment

(“PPE”) revenue

Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and VAT.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling of dates the fair value
was measured.

2022 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

)

(Continued)

The results of operations outside Mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development
activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(z) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

U)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

1

(2)

Related parties (Continuead)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vl The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the sale of
apparel and related accessories in the PRC. Revenue
represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts, rebates and VAT.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of IFRS 15 by sales
channels is as follows:

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B S5 - LAREFIT)
Wy
REBZ T BEHRNPBEHEERER

s - Watte B mriHEEERE
RE g - DR ER -

N R EE S M EIR B R R
%15 RBERES S KNS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREBFT

Online shops iR EIRd 665,052 668,901
Offline shops T IR

Wholesales s 185,842 278,473

Consignment (A i=! 327,371 423,896

Self-operated B 6,784 1,392

1,185,049 1,372,662

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
single customer contributed to 10% or more
of the Group's revenue (2021: nil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 26(a).

The Group has applied practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of IFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, to exempt the disclosure
of revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with the customers
in existence at the end of reporting period as the
performance obligation is part of a contract that has
an original expected duration of one year or less.

—E-—Ff-F=+—HuI#F

_7__

B EE P AERKE10%
‘MAH_f——E ;) o

BAZER

FHREENETEERRFBENME
26(a) °

7N 5% [ e AR B R B 5 i o ZE R 56 16 558
BEFAKNKRE 121 ROEER
AR KERIRE K EEFZEETER
FEERIARPIHER NN - AENEES
BEN—&D - MR HRA—FX
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BITHBES » LUARHIIT)
3  PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 3
REVENUE AND COST

PPE business was terminated in December 2021
considering the decreased operating margins and
PPE business had never been the Group’s focus
nor major line of business. For the year ended 31
December 2022, there was only one reportable

BAREEELREEE

ZRIEAERERBEEME T
BEADEREEH —EXFAEEZ
EREHAER  WEANERBERS
“—HT-ARLE-BE-T
——Ft-A=1+— Etif‘ REH

[

segment for sales of apparel and accessories. EEREREM 2 — BT 2mD 3P -
OTHER INCOME 4 HMKkA
2022 2022
—E_F —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Interest income FEUA 11,398 16,756
Government grants (Note) ERAT 4 B (BI3E) 28,577 43,887
Rental income from investment &M EFR S A
property 5,673 6,489
Depreciation of investment REMENE
property (11,598) (10,364)
Net gain on sale of HEHERETR
promotion and display materials ~ ##H)F IS 1,479 1,055
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ~ JMNE (E518) W5 B 58 (27,029) 3,432
Net gain on disposal of HEDE  BERSRE
property, plant and equipment LA&ﬁﬂﬁé‘F‘?ﬁ@J’éEE@
and other non-current assets s 58 364 838
Others HAh 5,220 6,552
14,084 68,645
Note: Kt -

Government grants in the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 represented unconditional cash awards granted by
government authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M H 8RN () /

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 FIREI(EE) EH
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after BREAT (B18) R FE kR
charging:
2022 2021
—E-CF —EE— —%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
(@) Finance costs L=
Interest on bank RITIEAFE R
borrowings and RITHRH ZIRAIR
discounting of
bank acceptance bills 19,330 15,592
Interest on lease liabilties ~ FAE&EF 5 2,002 587
21,332 16,179
2022 2021
—E-CF —ZE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®ETTT
(b) Staff costs BIRAE
Salaries, wages and other & + TE& KHEMEF
benefits 104,107 117,878
Contributions to defined AERFRIRETE
contribution retirement MR (P 5E23)
plans (note 23) 7,436 7,999
Termination benefits BrR A& A 17,493 1,981
Equity settled share-based #Ez#EE AR A
payment expenses ERmA R
(note 24) (MI7E24) 126 1,179
129,162 129,037
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

9  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 9

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after

charging:

(c)

Other items

Amortisation
—intangible assets
(note 12)
Depreciation
— owned property,
plant and equipment
(note 11)
— investment property
(note 10)
— right-of-use asset
(note 11)
Provision
of impairment loss
— trade and
other receivables
(note 17(b), 26(a)(i)
Inventory write-down
(note 16(b), (ii))
Auditors’ remuneration
Research and
development cost (i)
Cost of inventories
(note 16(b), (ii))

Ha g

By
-\ EE (MiE12)

e
- BBV BE MR
(FFaE11)

- KB
(f37E10)
- PRAEEE
(FFsE11)
BB E 1B B

- B S N A ERFIE
(FtsE17(b), 26()())

FEMOR (FIFE16(0) - (i)

ZEREI 2
PIEPEZN()

FERA (F1aE16(0) * (i)

FRIRAI (B51R) &% (&)
AT (B518) D 3R -

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
5,955 6,333
30,303 18,669
11,598 10,364
14,270 5,833
105,837 234
67,228 47,389
3,056 3,042
29,238 26,318
745,283 823,054

Notes:

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, research and (i)
development costs include staff costs of employees in

the design, research and development department of
RMB13,089,000 (2021: RMB13,985,000) which are

included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 5(b).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, cost (i)
of inventories includes inventory write-down of
RMB67,228,000 (2021: RMB47,389,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HFEREREMZEKEERS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND RIS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(@) Income tax in the consolidated @ HFEREREtZEKEF
statement of profit or loss and other R FRRIREE -
comprehensive income represents:
2022 2021
—E-—F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT
Current tax B HAF5 18
PRC Corporate A1 FT1SH (v)
Income Tax (iv) 30,643 68,375
Over-provision BEFENRE
in respect of prior years FBEE (849) (1,564)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (ii)ii)) &7 FI45 %5 (ii)iii) 1,434 1,054
PRC withholding tax Fh B TE AR
— dividend (v) -IRE W) - 4,751
— others - Hitb 1,297 1,353
32,525 73,969
Deferred tax IEERIE
Origination of temporary ~ EAE|E =58
differences and N AT N i B 18
deductible tax losses (Ftz¥ 15(0))
(note 15(b)) (37,685) (5,097)
(5,160) 68,872

Notes:

(0} Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(i) For the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

(iii) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022
takes into account a reduction granted by the
Hong Kong SAR Government of 100% of the
tax payable for the year of assessment 2021/22
subject to a maximum reduction of $10,000 for
each business (2021: a maximum reduction of
$10,000 was granted for the year of assessment
2020/21 and was taken into account in
calculating the provision for 2021).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(iv)

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the
Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China
is 25% for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: 25%).

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for dividend income derived from the PRC if the
Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of
the PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.
The Group adopted 5% withholding tax rate for
the years ended 31 December 2021.

Dividend withholding tax represents tax
charged by the PRC tax authority and dividend
distributed by the Group and subsidiary in the
Mainland China during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 KFERSEEREMZEKEES

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BIFR SR ()

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation hetween tax (credit)/ (b) MEGER) FAXEERE
expense and accounting (loss)/profit at ARFHEHEH (GE)
applicable tax rates: /RFIBHIE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation & #:A1 (E518) /% F (80,395) 237,513
Notional tax on (loss)/profit ¥z iR & R HE @
before taxation, BREB KT ER
calculated at the BRELAT (B18) & A
standard tax rates HEHIA
applicable to the
respective tax
jurisdictions (18,954) 63,699
Effect of non-deductible AT AR &
expenses 9,871 5,580
Effect of non-taxable BAFRRARNTE
income (2) (942)
Effect of tax losses not AERNIBEEENZE
recognised 3,643 1,762
Over-provision BEFERN
in prior years B (849) (1,564)
Other withholding tax H AR 1,297 1,353
Others HAtb (166) (1,016)
Actual tax (credit)/expense BB FIE (KR ), Bix (5,160) 68,872

2022 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1 E=E#HM
The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEFHMFIEHRENAT
as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2022
fee in kind contributions Total
e
AR RRGE b S-S
EsHe BENER X @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR

Executive directors  H{TEE

Mr. Ziming Yang BEBLE 575 575 30 1,180
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 305 - 28 333
Mr. Ronggin Ke R EE 158 140 61 359
Independent BUFHITES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui HRABTE 305 - - 305
Mr. Honghui Chen BRRE R A 305 - - 305
Mr. Ming Shu Leung REREE 305 - - 305
Total @t 1,953 715 119 2,787
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 1 EF=#HM =
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2021
fee in kind contributions Total
e
2B R RG] “T-—fF
vk BEWEn| T @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETE ARET ARETE

Executive directors ~ #{TES

Mr. Ziming Yang BEBLE 512 512 29 1,053
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Rt 293 - 22 315
Mr. Ronggin Ke R E 150 135 23 308
Independent BUFHITES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui HRABTE 293 - - 293
Mr. Honghui Chen BRRE R & 293 - - 293
Mr. Ming Shu Leung REREE 293 - - 293
Total @5t 1,834 647 74 2,555
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

8 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2021: one) is the director whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 7 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2021:
four) individuals are as follows:

mEHmM AL
AEREFHALFRE - REE(C
To—fF: R BE
M7 HE - BTHE(ZB=— 4
P0E) ERATHF Bl @sEm T -

VEFBN R £ XX

2022 2021
—E-—F —EE— —%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Salaries and other emoluments & K H {th 37 B 5,682 6,103
Contributions to retirement RIREFIFT B3R
benefit scheme 183 68
Equity settled share-based VARG AR 7R BB O Ak i
payments HEENR 126 1,179
5,991 7,350
The emoluments of the four (2021: four) individuals ME(ZEZ—F - mBRA)EaRTMALT
with the highest emoluments are within the following WEMN T TR :
bands:
2022 2021
—E-_—F —EE— —%E
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/87CE 1,000,000 % 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BTCE 4,500,000 87T 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

9  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 9 SER(EBR) 2

(a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@)

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings
per share is based on the loss attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB85,120,000 (2021: profit of
RMB164,192,000) and the weighted average
number of 668,593,000 ordinary shares
(2021: 668,593,000) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares

Issued ordinary sharesat R—H—BER+ZHA=+—H
1 January and MEEITERR
31 December

BEREX (GR) 2
BREXR(EBER) /BFTARR
AL ARSI EAEBGEEBEEAR
#85,120,0007c( —Z T = — F :
s A A R ¥8164,192,0007T ) &
FAMEFITLTBRMEFH
#1668,593,000f% (=& = —4F :
668,593,000 % ) & E £ 5+ B 1
T~

ZERINEFEE
2022 2021
—E-= L —4F
’000 000
TR TR
668,593 668,593
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 9 SRGR) B @

(b)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (h)

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings
per share is based on the loss attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB85,120,000 (2021: profit of
RMB164,192,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 668,593,000
shares (2021: 669,549,000), calculated as
follows:

S|EEE (5R) 2%
SRS (B18) BRTUARA
BT ERERE ARGEEAR
#85,120,0007T( —ZF = — F -
M AR 164,192,000 7T) K&
18 1% hn #E F 5 8668,593,000 i
(ZZ——4% : 669,549,000 %) A
BEREHENT

Weighted average number of ordinary EERMEE S (EF)
shares (diluted)
2022 2021
—ECCHF —FT-—F
’000 ‘000
F& Fix
Weighted average number A +—=-A=+—H
of ordinary shares FORER IR S
at 31 December 668,593 668,593
Effect of deemed issue of 1R 1EIRIBEA R BB HERT 2]
shares under the NERBEITRDHFZE
Company’s share option  (Hff5E24)
scheme for nil
consideration (note 24) - 956
Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H
of ordinary shares Y B I INAE 19 81
(diluted) at 31 December  (#5&) 668,593 669,549
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ATTHEBE S + UA ST
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 10 ¥EME
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2021 R —_—F—H—H 122,997
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment ~ B3 - BMERREEF HE 11,887
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 W-_ZE_—F+-_A=+—H
S R=F-_—"%—-A—-H - 134,884
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment  BE¥1% » ME MRIEEF DB 23,197
_At31December2022 REZEZZFT-A=ZTH 158,081
Accumulated depreciation: ?‘l‘?ﬁ’%
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—H—H 19,985
Charge for the year F W?D 10,364
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment ~ B4% « MENBREHEEFHE 1,417
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E-—F+=-_A=+—H
EZZE__F—H—H 31,766
Charge for the year FERNkR 11,598
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment ~ B3 - BERREEF HE 1,475
_At81December2022 R=B_—FX-A=47H 44,839
Net book value: BREDF
At 31 December 2022 R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—H 113,242
At 31 December 2021 N_ZE_—F+_HA=+—H 103,118

Investment properties of the Group are situated in
the PRC.

All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment
properties are classified as investment properties.

The carrying amount of the investment properties
was not materially different from its fair value as at
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

AREBENREMERANPE -

REEHER N RHBENAENERITH
EREVMEERENERREDE -

R-ZE-—"F+_-_A=+—HBFK_-ZF

==
EEEAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
every year to reflect market rentals. None of the
leases includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in place at the reporting
date will be receivable by the Group in future
periods as follows:

10

BREYE @)

EEHRRTHHNEE
AEERBEEHERLREDZ - H
E-RNFR/RP1E6F WA EEH
BB GRRENAPEEEE - HE
MR —REFHABRARRTISHEE -
BEHEBEAEBHHENK -

A ST R TR E N R
5P A SR R DA TSR SR AR MR

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year —FA 4,654 4,933
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFNRN 5,632 10,710
10,286 15,643
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BRI E ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

/

(B ATTHEBE S + UA ST
11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ¥ BEREH
(@ Reconciliation of carrying amount (@ MREEHE
Ownership
interests
in land and other
properties held
for own use Furniture,
carriedat  Leasehold  Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
cost improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
RHANGR
BERRZIH
REfNES LIRS :
FREEE RENEZE AEREE e RkiE  HEIR @t
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR
Cost: ﬁﬂ&
At1 January 2021 R-F=-F-A-A 58,188 30,181 131,874 17,733 30413 %32 29,711
Additions hE 45,403 3,102 1,973 2,323 3,586 44,565 100,962
Reclassiication fom investment B RENXEH D
properties . 4517 = = = - = 4517
Disposals e - - (3206) (1,735) (2709 - (7.650)
Transfer £ \ - - 33893 - 1,351 (35,244) -
Reclassfication to ivestment - EFABERENR
properties . - - (16,404) - - - (16,404)
Exchange adjustment B R - = = (504) ) = (581)
At 31 December 2021 R=E--Ft-A=t-Ak
e REAE 08108 B AN VBN WS 6B 9956
Additions hE \ 24,52 - 3,880 - 4,956 83,189 116,547
Reclassifcation to investment i#ﬁ AEERANE
properties - - (19,115) - - (4,082) (23.197)
Disposals e (16,026) (142) - (5,444) (3,850) (25,662)
Transler 28 - R - - - 1) -
Exchange adjustment B2 - 316 - 37 178 - 821
M3 Deomberp  RZERTASTOR 116404 82729 1783 1814 %2 IO 420
Accumulated depreciation: ~ 2&t& :
At 1 January 2021 R-Z--#-F-A 7316 21,246 18,538 12,671 1817 - 87,588
Charge for the year e 5833 1829 11,898 2036 2906 - 24,50
Reclassffcation from investment ~ BRENXEHE
properties . 280 = = = = - 280
Nriten back on disposals HERE ‘ - - 239 (1,625) (1,382 - (3.246)
Redassficatontoimvestment ~ BRAEZERANZ
propertes - - (1,697) - - - (1,697)
Exchange adustment ExRE . = = (044) W - (321)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-E+ZA=1-RR
iy SEEAE %y MmO A0 0B B SO L
Charge for the year ?DB? 14,270 12,241 12,028 2415 3,619 = 44573
Reclassifcation to investment NESRENE
properties ) - - (1475) - - = (1,479)
Witten beck on disposels ;&%@@ (6,150) - (79 - 6,10) - [113%)
Exchange adustment ExAE = 41 = 248 17 - 460
_ A3 December 2022 REEBFoAztA 2154 Msr s891s 16501 20T 10
Net book value: Eﬁ@ FE:
At31 December 2022 RZEZF+ZA=1-A 94,855 51372 93,778 2,643 10307 Q70 3027%
At 31 December 2021 R=B--#+-A=1-A 94,679 4208 119,630 4979 9,300 33,643 266,439
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

"

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of carrying amount
(Continued)

The aggregated net book value of property,
plant and equipment and investment
properties (note 10) pledged to secure the
Group's banking facilities for issuing bills
payable and short-term bank borrowing was
amounted to RMB206,043,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB224,384,000).

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-
use assets by class of underlying asset is as
follows:

11 %% - - BERRE®

(@) RRE{EHEE)

RZEZZF+ZA=+—
B EEFEAEXEARK
206,043,000 T ¥ 3~ W FE &
mEREEYFE(KEE10) B8
B IERAASERRNEITEN
EBRNEHIBTERZEBEITH
BHER(ZE-Z—F: ARK
224,384,000 7T) °

(b) ERAERE
BHBEEERRE D 2 EAEER
EREFESTAT

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—fF
+=-ZA=+—-H| +tZH=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR®TR ARETT
Ownership interests in BEgRZ
leasehold land held HELHZ
for own use, carried at e EER
the depreciated cost (RITEKRAAR) ) 52,369 53,800
Other properties leased MEEERZ
for own use, carried at Hib % (fRiTE
the depreciated cost AARARR) (i) 42,486 40,879
94,855 94,679
Notes: () Ownership interests in leasehold land held BieE: () BEERCHEELH B
for own use s
Ownership interests in leasehold land held BiEaRzHEL M2 #E

for own use represented the Group’s land
use rights on leasehold land located in the
PRC. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these land use rights.

(i) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to
use other properties as its warehouses,
office and retail stores through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments
are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT "

(Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as
follows:

Depreciation charge of LEEEERREINH
right-of-use assets by EREEEREXL :
class of underlying asset:

Ownership interests BIEERZHEL
in leasehold land HEREER

held for own use
Other properties leased for FE1EE AR H ALY
own use

Interest on lease liabilites FAE&EFE (MI5E5())
(note 5(a))

Expense relating to HRHAHE
short-term leases AR

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

¥ - BB Bk E (@)

(b)

ERERE @)
BN RER O EERMNMX
HE AT :

2022 2021
—E-—F —T=- F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
1,431 1,432
12,839 4,401
2,002 587
1,109 3,612

2022% % | 209 |FEBRGHERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

"

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021, additions to right-
of-use assets were primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under
new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the
future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes
19(d),22 and 26(b) respectively.

The Group has early adopted the Amendment
to IFRS16, Leases, Covid-19-related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the
financial statements for the year ended
31December 2021, and applies the practical
expedient to all eligible rent concessions
received by the Group.
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h) EHESEEZ
HE_T-_—_F+=ZH=+—H
T —f+ZA=+—HL
FE - FRABEENAETENR
BRIBEFHERZENZEEARE
ENNERB -

FEMEReRLESE - HES
BRI A DT R RFBHEE
EEZARRBRERHZHFE &
2 RIZBIMEE19(d) « 22 X%26(b) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS mEEE
Computer
software Others Total
E LI Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—%—H—H 76,367 9,050 85,417
Additions NE 8,105 3,253 11,358
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT_-—4F
and 1 January 2022 +—A=+—H8K
—E-__F—H—H 84,472 12,303 96,775
Additions NE 3,490 - 3,490
Disposals meE (452) - (452)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZT -4
+=—A=1+—H 87,510 12,303 99,813
Accumulated RETE .

amortisation:

At 1 January 2021 RN-ZE-—F—HF—H 44,885 2,237 47,122
Charge for the year F AR 6,089 244 6,333
At 31 December 2021 HR-_Z——4F
and 1 January 2022 +ZA=F+—HBEK
—E-_HF—H—H 50,974 2,481 53,455
Charge for the year FAHBR 5,602 353 5,955
Written back on k==
disposals (831) - (831)
At 31 December 2022 HR-ZT_-—
+=-—A=+—H 56,245 2,834 59,079
Net book value: BREDEE :
At 31 December 2022 HR-ZE-—4F
+ZA=1+—H 31,265 9,469 40,734
At 31 December 2021 RZ-Z=—4F
+-A=+—H 33,498 9,822 43,320
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other RZEZZFRZF—F+=A
intangible assets include golf and yacht club =+—H HMEFREERESAX
memberships totally amounted to RMB6,813,000. MiEemegiEs * AR%6,813,000
The Group considers that the useful lives of above Te AEERAE LM SEIEFRAF
memberships are infinite. R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

12

The Group considers that there is no impairment
indication of the intangible assets with infinite useful
lives, as the fair value of such assets exceeded
their carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021.

The amortisation charge of intangible assets for
the year is included in “administrative and other
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

13 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

13

Particulars of the associate which is an unlisted
domestic enterprise incorporated and with business
in the PRC whose quoted market price is not

available:
Particulars of
issued and paid
Name of associate up capital
ERTRE
BergR HREAHE
Guangzhou Huazhi Investments Co., Ltd. RMB100,000,000
(‘Huazhi Investments'* AR 100,000,0007C

EMERRERRAA([EERE )

| EE @\
RZE_—_F+-_A=+—Bk=F
——F+-A=+—8  BaRAEAF
HAERNEFEEN A FEBRAER
HE UASERREHEEELELIR
BERR -

FABRTEERHER DG ARARE
REMEE W RIE N [TTEREEM
LB R [HERDHAX]

R—EBEARNER
ZHE DR (R — MR B MA I
EITEBNELTHERLE - KSR
MBI A MEEMT

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERELA
Group's
effective Held by the Held by a
interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
A%EH HE
ERER AOAFRE  QAFRE  TERED
33% - 33% Properties construction

nERE

*

The English translation of the Company name is for

reference only. The official name of the Company is in

Chinese.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.
Summarised financial information of the associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies,
and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ATTHEBE S + UA ST
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 13 H—HEBRELATNER &)
2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Gross amounts of the associate ~ Bf& /A Al #1425 58
Current assets MEEE 141,810 387,055
Non-current assets EMBEE 446,012 166,410
Current liabilities MEEE (236,950) (207,529)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (249,000) (235,000)
Equity B 101,872 110,936
Revenue e 5,094 =
Loss for the year FANEE (9,064) (4,873)
Total comprehensive loss FHEBERSE (9,064) (4,873)
Reconciled to the Group’s HAREEREE A RIA
interests in the associate T AR
Gross amounts of net assets B AR EEFEERE
of the associate 101,872 110,936
Group’s effective interest REENERER 33% 33%
Group’s share of net assets AEEEEHEAREEFE
of the associate 33,618 36,609
Goodwill = 10,932 10,932
Carrying amount in the R e SR AR BREE
consolidated financial
statements 44,550 47,541
Loans to an associate (note i) ) — R A RIREE R
(MEi) 36,333 31,502
Deposits to purchase an BENAEVENILZS
office premises (note ii) (B &Eii) 38,709 38,102
119,592 117,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

13

Note:

M

(i)

F UAEEST)

Loans to an associate are unsecured and
interest bearing at an interest rate ranging from
5.66% to 8%. The loans will be due in 2025, and
subject to a guarantee provided by the Group
to a bank in the PRC. The Group provided a
guarantee to a bank in the PRC, which lent a
long-term loan to Huazhi Investments maturing
in 2034, that the Group will not demand
repayment of the loans receivables and related
interests from Huazhi Investments until Huazhi
Investments has fully repaid its loans due to that
bank. The carrying amount of above loans to an
associate are measured at amortised cost.

In addition, the Group and Huazhi Investments
agreed to settle part of the loans as purchase
considerations payable by the Group if the
Group decides to acquire an office premises
located in Guangzhou City held by Huazhi
Investments. The selling price of the property
will be determined with reference to 95% of a
valuation provided by an independent appraiser.
According to the agreement, the Group
has discretion to acquire the property upon
completion or demand a full repayment of the
outstanding balance of the loan with the interest
due from Huazhi Investments. The carrying
amount of above prepayments for acquisition of
plant and equipment is measured at amortised
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 MRHEATMNKRSE

The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIEAKEFEE - BEEXEE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, BEERTENMBARFIE -BR5HIE
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares BASN - FTiEIR (D B AR o

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of owngrshir interest
BRELILA

Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by the
Name of company and business  paid up capltal interest Company subsidiaries Principal activities
SRR ERAR  AEEY KA o .
A X1y ﬁkﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂ‘ R kB fike  IEEE
Cabbeen Clothing China PRC HK$260,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Co., Ltd () e 260,000,000 7C HERR
(“Cabbeen China’)
%é i () AR AR (1)
([+ZwE )
Guangzhou (Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
g E 20,000,000 %70 BERs
FJHm%E HERAT" (1)
Quanzhou Mije Electronic PRC Nil 100% - 100% Wholesale of apparel
Commerce Co, Lid* HE g R
SN TERE FIRARAT
Guangzhou Zixi Enterpnse PRC HK$250,000,000 100% - 100% Trademark holding and
Managemem Co., Ltd. * |) e 250,000,00077C retail 0 apgarel
BTRRL L ERER AR () BRRERREZE
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC RMBS6,000,000 100% - 100% Online sales of apparel
Trading Co., Lid* i AR¥6,000,0007C hREEE
BN TERNE5ERAR"
Guangzhou Huazhi PRC RMB65,000,000 96.27% - 96.27% Real estate development
Development Co, Lid"_ el AR65,0000007C BHERE
BN EEELURARAT
Shishi Gity Junyuan Development  PRC RMB6,616,885 100% -

100% Properties holding
Co,, Ltd.* el ARH6,616,885 70 M%%E
RRTERERARAA

Tianjin Lechuang Electronic PRC RMB2,000,000 25% - 25% Online sales of apparel
Commerce Co, Lid" ) i AR 2,000,000 EhlkkEE
R2EEETERERAT )

Notes: (i) The subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned HiEE - () ZEMBRR ATREINIEBEER
enterprises in the PRC. E

(i) In accordance with the article of association, (i) RIEESSIEME > REPEHE

Cabbeen China has control over Tianjin BRRLAETABERIAN

Lechuang Electronic Commerce Co.,Ltd, who PRI - Bt - K ERKEBL

as a result, is consolidated in the financial Alira ANREA QR ERE -

statements of the Company as a subsidiary.

* The English translation of the companies’' names is for ) FZERNRNEELEHRZE - ZFRA
reference only. The official names of these companies are RN ETERE R B e
in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

15

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

15

FReMERRRANMRER

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (@) HFEMBERARABEIRIR
statement of financial position IRiE :
represents:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
PRC Corporate Income Tax ¥ BI{E R FT{EH 24,068 26,610
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABMFH 7,230 6,696
31,298 33,306
(b) Deferred tax assets and liahilities (h) EHEZHEZERBEIERS
recognised: ] :

() Movement of each component of

() EBERFRIERARD

deferred tax assets and liabilities HHEKESEE
The components of deferred tax RERE MR R R
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the ELEMBEEE (BE)
consolidated statement of financial ) 48 AKX BB 5 B 4 1A & 1
position and the movements during I
the year are as follows:
Inventory  Allowances for Accrued Unrealised
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits Tax losses Total
WMEEFELEERE FERE RERE Eifx  AERE HEER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 N-E-—£-f-H 31,288 48 7,0% 1634 40499
Debtec)oedied opeft ~ (7) / AR
0rloss (note 6(a) (FiiEoa) (8,6%8) % 11413 464 1,860 5,097
At 31 December 2021 AB-Ft=A=1-H
and 1 January 2022 k=%3-£-R-H 2590 540 18508 2,098 1860 45,5%
Debied)cedtedtoproft (1) /A
0rloss (e Bfa) (o) (2567 26,460 9485 2913 1,394 37665
At 31 December 2022 i g 20,023 27,000 27993 5011 3,264 83,281
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15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

15 RSMBRARADMERIR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (#)
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities b ERZNHEERFREERSH
recognised: (Continued) R:#
(1)  Reconciliation to the consolidated () FREMBKREREIE
statement of financial position
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Net deferred tax asset RERE AR R
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement MIAEE R
of financial position 83,281 45,596
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () KWERMHEBEMFEE
The Group did not recognise deferred tax REBE EEREME THEMN
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of BRAAMNARABEEBBEARY
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB18,389,000 18,389,000 L(ZZF = —4F : A
(2021: RMB11,329,000), which will expire in R #11,329,000 7T ) A IE FE i 18
five years under the current tax legislation. BE HEBROTBZEETITKERA
The tax effect on such tax losses has not FielEme AR HBEERBRRET
been recognised as it is not probable that AP BERAERAT IS #E (R B Be A DA
future taxable profits against which the losses KB ENERTAR - I &
can be utilised will be available in the relevant BREBZSEHEBBENONBER
tax jurisdiction and entity. 2.
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised ) XKWERHEERMHFAR

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB878,640,000
(2021: RMB994,375,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

W EmER E AR B R B A E
B TR K s ) A B & B R
BEENENELEHEAEE  RE
RBARAIEGIZENE A AR
BHE - EHRBREBEEBNSREH
HEREELHFTG  EARAEERR
7]/ B Fff 8 A R8I R 2 K& KA
R #878,640,000T( — T — —
F : AR¥ 994,375,000 7T) #1
R LBRDIK °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

16

INVENTORIES 16 &8
(@ Inventories in the consolidated (@ HJFEMBRARNHERE
statement of financial position 3E -
comprise:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®ET T
Raw materials R R 12,031 14,405
Work in progress ERD 8,297 9,341
Finished goods IR 361,247 507,209
381,575 530,955
(b) The analysis of the amount of h) WREAXZLEABZBHEF
inventories recognised as an expense REWESHWT -
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Carrying amount of EHEFEMNREE
inventory sold
— apparel and accessories — ARZE N Fi & 678,055 743,825
— the PPE - BART &R - 31,840
Inventories write-down FEMUR
— apparel and accessories — AREE & Br & 67,228 47,389
745,283 823,054
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17 RHEBRAEMEBUIRIER

2022 2021

—E-C—F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Trade receivables B 5 REIGRIE 579,127 491,943

Bills receivable JEWZEIE 168,703 113,000

Less: Loss allowance B EE R (98,832) (1,370)

Trade and bills receivables B ZRIIE R EWEE 648,998 603,573

Prepayments to suppliers At e TR K1 43,401 24,574
Other deposits, prepayments Hiizs - BARIER

and receivables FEWS IR 43,836 83,720

Less: Loss allowance B EERE (9,168) (793)

727,067 711,074

All of the current trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of
RMB6,938,000 (2021: RMB3,729,000), which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

FrB BIEAE 5) & H fth fE W R IE TR HA S 10
—FAKCESERERY - HEBEHEG
REBRA—FREBNAEEEZE AR
#6,938,000L(ZE=-—F : AR¥
3,729,000 7T) R 4N ©

202253 | 219 FERGBERAS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17

The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade
debts. The management considered that the risk
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk.
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred
by either discounting or endorsement, they were
derecognised as a financial asset.

(@) Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
based on invoice date and net of loss
allowance as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows:

ESRHEMERKRIA (&)

AEBGEFEHEERMATEEIRR
TEIRTTEAARE - EEBRRAZER
EOERTIREEERREH - Eit -
ERERBABMARSEERR - &
ERIBASEREE -

@ MERSH
RZEZZFRZF-_—F+=
A=1T—H®E S EWFIEKE
WEBINREEREERBERRE

HEARBRER DAL T -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

Within 3 months ={EAA 193,902 401,353
More than 3 months but ~ =1E A LA_E7XE A AR
within 6 months 84,688 107,560
More than 6 months but 7~ E A A E—F AR
within 1 year 228,534 93,694
More than 1 year —F Lk 141,874 966
648,998 603,573
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are generally
due within 180-270 days from the date
of billing. During the reporting period, the
Group kept assessing the expected credit
loss of all receivables and established a loss
allowance. The loss allowance is recorded
using a provision account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, in which
case the expected credit loss is written
off against trade receivables and the loss
allowance directly. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy

and credit risk arising from trade debtors and
bills receivables are set out in note 26(a).

Impairment of trade and bills

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

17 BHERHEMEBEIKRIEA @

@ RRZHE

Z 5B I R EWEER BN
FAZ A 180F 270 H A F
H - MRS HAR - AKEERBEY
BB IENTEREEHEE
ITRHE I E BB - BB
BEERBERAR  BRIEAEE
MBI T B A - R
R BHEEEEERESRE
W IE RSB ER B M -
REBWERZSERFTREM
R o

ERAAEBNEEBRMERERK
BRRREWEEEEMNEERR
R EE26(a) ©

(b) WHEBRRFARFRED

receivables i {8
The movement in the loss allowance account FAZEZREWFIANEWEE
for trade and bills receivables during the year EEREREHNT
is as follows:
2022 2021
—EC-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
At 1 January n—H—H 1,370 762
Impairment loss MR A E 1S
recognised 97,462 608
At 31 December Rt=-—A=+— 98,832 1,370
2022% % | 221 |FEBRGHERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

18 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 18 EBEHRITHER

Bank deposits have been pledged mainly as security
for bills payable (note 21) and banking facilities (note
20). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of relevant bills payable and
expiration of banking facilities.

RITERE T2 ERERBNRE (K
fE21) RIRITHRAS (aE20) W9#ER - B
BEHRTEFSNBEERRNREX
RITIRSEHIRARRR -

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 HeRB&EFERY

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

@ DReRJALEEYEE:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand R1TFH R FRRE 207,339 247,226
Other deposit HAFEmR 5,445 4,445
Cash and cash equivalents ARE BIFGROR R K&

in the consolidated mEHeRERN

statement of financial ReRREEEY

position and consolidated

cash flow statement 212,784 251,671

At 31 December 2022, cash and cash
equivalents placed with banks in Mainland
China amounted to RMB201,034,000 (2021:
RMB237,874,000). Remittance of funds out
of Mainland China is subject to the relevant
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 19 ReRREFED @)

(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before (b) BRERAN(B5IR) BT HE
taxation to cash generated from ERDFREHSnHE -
operations:

2022 2022
—E-CF —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
3E ARETT ARETTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ BRHEAT (E518) /% Fl (80,395) 237,513
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation e 5(c) 56,171 34,866
Amortisation of B EEEH
intangible assets 5(c) 5,955 6,333
Share of loss of b—FmE R R
an associate B1E 2,991 1,608
Finance costs BMEKR 5(a) 21,332 16,179
Net foreign exchange INEES IR, (Yas
loss/(gain) FEE 23,507 (5,859)
Interest income MEHA 4 (11,398) (16,756)
Net gain on disposal HEWE - KE
of property, plant JEAREM
and equipment ERBEER
and other W 58
non-current assets 4 (364) (838)
Equity settled share-based ~ #Em&EE ARG A
payment expenses EMONTAZ 50 126 1,179
Changes in working capital: ~ &iE& &) :
Decrease/(increase) in BFERD,/ ()
inventories 149,380 (142,662)
Increase in trade B 5 REAMEK
and other receivables IR AN (22,523) (110,702)
(Decrease)/increase intrade B 5 M E b ER
and other payables FECRD) /N (201,499) 64,219
Cash (used in)/generated  #&<&E8) (FTH),/
from operations Fﬁ??' Re (56,717) 85,080
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

19  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continves) 19 RERREFRM @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MFEFEDFMEEARZHIE
financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

TREJIMEADELEAKHE
BEZEHFE  BRASNE
R pELTPELZAR
EREREESIRRRSRER
RAEESAREERERD A

SRETBHELCHSRENE

consolidated cash flow statement as cash i
flows from financing activities.
Bank loans
and other Lease Interests Dividends
borrowings liabilities payable payable Total
RIEHR
Effest HESHE EHRIE ERRE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETn
At 1 January 2022 R=F-—%—F—H 251,174 41576 438 - 293,188
Changes from financing REREREZET
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans METER2 AR 270,218 - - - 270,218
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (275,455 - - - (275,455
Capital element of lease [RADLEE A )
rentals paid - (8882 - - (8882
Interest element of lease BiifgFIESS
rentals paid - (2,002 - - (2,002
Interests paid BRFE - - (18,801) - (18,801)
Dividends paid ERRE - - - (24,960) (24,960)
Total changes from financing BERSRE DA
Jeenfows o ..._....ban (084 (18801 4960 9882
Exchange adjustments EiAE 23,332 = = - 23,332
Other changes: AfRE
Amortisation on other EffETER A
borrowings cost 949 - = - 949
Interest expense MERZ - 2,002 18,381 - 20,383
Increase In lease liabilties from BARBEAHE
entering into new leases ZHEEEEN
dluring the period - 24522 = - 24522
Decrease in lease labifties due HEANRAKIER
10 early termination REEERD
of lease contracts - (10,268) - - (10,268)
Addtion on dividends payable ERaEm - - - 24,960 24,960
_ Totalotherchanges . Segaaw M9 1626 18381 H960 60546
At 31 December 2022 R=B==f
+ZA=t-H 210,218 46,948 18 = 317,184
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(c)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 19 HRERTEFE/Y @
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ) REITEBmMELEARZIHE
financing activities (Continued) (&)

Bank loans
and other Lease Interests Dividends
horrowings liabilities payable payable Total
RIERR
HhfER HESR EHRIE ERRE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AEETT
At1 January 2021 B=B--£-8-A 352,144 9,566 43 - 362,148
Changes from financing HERSHE AT
cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans [BRENEH (92,690) - - - (92,690)
Capital element of EffigEAS A
lease rentals paid - (4,109) - - (4,109)
Interest element of Bl HESA
lease rentals paid - (587) - - (587)
Interests paid BFIE - - (14,580) - (14,580)
Dividends paid EfRE - - - (76,571) (76571)
Total changes from HERGE ETNE
__fencngeashfows 260 W6l 14580 . st (188,587)
Exchange adjustments ERHE (9,292) = = = (9,29)
Other changes: Eti25:
Amortisation on AhiEHeAE S
other borrowings cost 1,012 - - - 1,012
Interest expenses HER% - 587 14580 - 15,167
Increase i lease fabilties BARATHEE
from entering nto new LHERREM
leases during the period - 36,119 - - 36,119
Addition on divicends payable FERREEN - - = 76,571 76,571
_ Totalotherchanges Regmes e 6106 1480 16571 128869
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
TZR=1-A 251,174 41,576 438 - 293,188
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

19 RERFEER/EM @

(d) Total cash outflow for leases () FRESHLTHER
Amounts included in the cash flow statement HEEFARERERZINES
for leases comprise the following: FETHRIE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within operating cash flows REELEELREN (1,109) (3,612)
Within financing cash flows REIEREREN (10,884) (4,696)
Within investing cash flows RiEEREREN - (9,284)
(11,993) (17,592)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESRETKIEAR
2022 2021
—E-C—F —EE— —%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
Lease rentals paid BEfRHEERES (11,993) (8,308)
Purchase of leasehold EBEREYE
properties - (9,284)
(11,993) (17,592)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

226

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20 BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

20 SRITE

RITERTIRIATHIRERE

At 31 December

W+=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C—F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Repayable within one year R—FEAEE
Unsecured and denominated 3B LB TTAHE
in Hong Kong Dollar - 251,174
Secured and denominated BEBWAAREEE
in Renminbi 270,218 -
270,218 251,174

Bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 were carried at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2022, secured short term bank
loans of RMB270,218,000 (31 December 2021: Nil)
were secured by pledged bank deposits (see note
18) and land use rights and certain properties of the
Group (see note 10 and 11).

As at 31 December 2021, the unsecured bank
borrowings of RMB251,174,000 were drawn down
under a three-year term loan facilities of HK$350
million, which have been fully repaid in December
2022.

R-E-—F+-A=1+—BHR1TE
FR—EBE-—F+=-A=1+—BHET
B - EIREB AL -

R-ZZT-_—F+-_A=+—H FEH
RHIRTTE R AR 270,218,000 70( =
TE-—F+_fF=+—H8:8)UBEK
HERTER (R MFE18) &L b {F B
MASEHNSE TYEERT(RME10
K1) -

R-TE-_—F+_A=+—H &EEH
IRITIEE AR 251,174,000 L E R 1%
BOHEEBTH=ZFHERREIRRN
WER-_ZT-_—F+_ABHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

20 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 20

As at 31 December 2022, banking facilities of the
Group were amounted to RMB360,558,000 (31
December 2021: RMB594,1983,000), of which
facilities amounted to RMB359,814,000 were

SRIT IR (&)

R-EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H' ' &%
B /IR 1T R E A A R ¥ 360,558,000
T(ZEZ—F+=-_A=+—H: AR
%wM%mmﬁ>“¢@ﬁAEM

utilised (31 December 2021: RMB517,370,000). 359,814,000 TEEBA (ZE=—F+=
A=+—8: AE%517,370,00070
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BESREMESRIA

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R-E-_F RZTZ—F

+=A=+—-R8| +=ZA=1+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETF T

Trade payables B 5 EMNFIR 138,954 166,557

Bills payable (note (a)) FERTZE 1% (F5E (a)) 159,949 380,280
Trade and bills payables (note (b)) BIRNFIEBER

e E 1% (F3E (b)) 298,903 546,837

Contract liabilities B4 ’]ﬁfﬁ 3,665 4,152

Refund liabilities: RyEE

- arising from rebates —XE@W 86,928 68,883

— arising from right of return - RBREE 3,183 1,920

Other payables and accruals HAib AR T & 130,453 95,533

523,132 717,325
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21

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognized as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

(@ Bills payable as at 31 December 2022
were secured by pledged bank deposits of
RMB70,354,000 (2021: RMB114,084,000)
(note 18) and land use rights and properties of
RMB206,043,000 (2021: RMB224,384,000)
(notes 10 and 11).

(b)  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

B SR HMEMRIEA (@)

FEE 5 R EMEN KBRS —F
NEN RER R BASILRRER -

@)

—EF+-A=+—HHE
NEBEABEBRITFRARE
70,354,0007c( — T = — 4 : A
R #114,084,0007T ) (KM 5E18)
AR THFEREREARE
206,043,000 (=T =—%F : A
R # 224,384,000 7T ) 1E 5 #8 (B
F10K%11) °

BHRMNARENEBRIEE
SEHORREDTIT -

follows:

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-TB=-—F R-B-—&F
+=ZHA=+—-H| +t=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Within 3 months ={EAA 186,202 339,642

More than 3 months but = 1E A A _EX{E R AR
within 6 months 109,522 203,842

More than 6 months but 7~ EL A LA E—F AR

within 1 year 797 672
More than 1 year —FUE 2,382 2,681
298,903 546,837
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAR
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-TB-—F RZTZ—F
+=A=+—-R8| +=ZA=1+—8H
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
REHEE REHEE
MR E B E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Within 1 year —FRN 15,398 13,868
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 16,168 13,957
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFRA 15,382 13,751
46,948 41,576
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23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 16% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

There is no forfeited contributions that may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for

the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Share-hased Payment

A subsidiary of the Company entered into
an arrangement in January 2021 to acquire
a trademark and to collaborate with the
trademark seller and another independent
third party to develop a business for sale and
marketing of branded fashion apparels.

The arrangement included the issue of 41%
shares in that subsidiary to the trademark
seller and the independent third party at a
nominal consideration of HK$41. In addition,
the subsidiary has the rights to repurchase
the 41% equity interest from trademark
seller and the independent third party at
a nominal consideration of HK$41 unless
specific performance conditions are achieved
by them. In August 2022, the independent
third party withdrew from the fashion apparel
business and confirmed that he forfeited all
the rights under the share-based payment
arrangement as mentioned above. As at 31
December 2022, the specific performance
conditions were not met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Pre-IPO Employee Share Option Scheme
(the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme)

On 8 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules of the share option
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee
ceases to be an employee of the Group
for reasons other than death, permanent
disability, retirement and transfer of
employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.

There were 2,750,000 pre-IPO share options
outstanding and exercisable as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
There was no pre-IPO share options lapsed,
exercised or cancelled during the year ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The pre-IPO share options outstanding at
31 December 2022 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.8 years (2021:
1.8 years).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

25 B/E - EmkiE

(@ Movements in components of equity (@A RISVHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and REBIGRERESHBONFEI R
closing balances of each component of the FREGOERSENG S ER T
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the K o AR TT/ééﬁﬁ1IE|JE‘KﬁEA¢
consolidated statement of changes in equity. MEFEROEEFBEHSNBAT
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  Retained
Company capital premium reserves reserves reserve profits Total
g
ALH Rk  RGEE  EERE  EAEE  ENGE  REE &3t
Note  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
Wi ARETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETr  ARETR  AREfn  ARETR
Balanceat{ January 2021 ~ W=%=-%
-f-Rfs 5214 9,1% 384 1,898 (1,981) 39,546 54,266
Changesin equity for 2021: ~ —E=—%H
Eﬁ?ﬁ
Total comprehensive income.~~ ERZANELE
forthe year = = = = (1,529 74,780 73,261
Dividends dedared BERRE 20) - - - - - (716,571) (16,571)
Balance at 31 December 2021 W=Z=-%+=A
and 1 January 2022 =t+-Ak
_ECCE
-f-Algs 30 5214 9,19 384 1,898 (3510) 371,75 50936
Changesin equity for2022: ~ —E= &
E&29.
Total comprehensive income. - ERZENEEE
for the year - - - - 4319 21572 25,891
Dividends declared BERRE 25b) - - - - - (24.960) (24960)
Balance at 31 December 2022 A=Z==%+Z}
St-AlER 5,214 9,1% 34 1898 809 34,367 51,867
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

/

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BE - FHinRERE @)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends b B&R
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) BN ANFE RN ARAT]
of the Company attributable to the year R AR R AR B
2022 2021
—E__—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR®ET T
Interim dividend declared EEIREE XN
and paid of HK1 cent B HARR B
per ordinary share Bl EBER
(2021: HK8.5 cents per 1784
ordinary share) T —%F:
BIRE B
8.5 7811l 5,858 47,096
Final dividend proposed R —FHERIE
after the end of N oE NS
2021 HK3.4 cents per BRRE R
ordinary share 3.4 - 18,527
5,858 65,623

R E B RIE IR R
HARR B 3 7 3R 5 B R B
RRAE -

The final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period had not
been recognised as a liability at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

(CONTINUED)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BE - FHinBERE m)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends continued) (h) B2 #

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders i) HERLE—UBREFEER
of the Company attributable to the N L ROR A EY FE AT
previous financial year, approved and RARERRRARE
paid during the year

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AR®ET T
Final dividend in respect of L —EFHFE
the previous financial year, o R FE AR
approved and paid HIREARR BB AR
during the year, of HK3.4 cents 3% 3.4 /&1l
per ordinary share (ZZE=——%:
(2021: HK5.3 cents per B R
ordinary share) 5.371l) 19,102 29,475
(c) Share capital (c) R&®
() Authorised and issued share capital N EEREBBRITEF
2022 2021
—EoCE “E-f
No.of shares  HK$'000  RMB'000 No.ofshares ~ HK$000  RMB'000
RA#E T AR®TR BEEE Thr AREBTR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREE0IBT
HK$0.01 each LERR 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208 | 10,000,000000 100,000 79,208
Ordinary shares, issued  CETAREZER :
and fully paid:
At 1 January and R-A-Ak
31 December T-A=1-H 668,593,000 6,686 5214 668,593,000 6,686 5214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(¢) Share capital ccontinued)

(M

(ii)

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

The equity shareholders are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares issued under share option
scheme

There was no share options granted
or exercised during the year ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.
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25 BE - EmEEE W)

() BR&E#)
) ZEERERITEREZ)

Bk REBUR RS
KA ALE - A B
BORARBRRRE L
=R o A E BB
REFBEEZARZM

fiz -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BE - FHinBERE m)
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves ) GERBOEERBE
() Share premium m KF&ER
Under the Companies Law of the BRERSRFESRARNE K
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the RAIRMEER ENE S
Company’s share premium account A& TRE: BIRA
are distributable to the shareholders EREEBEREREERZ
provided that immediately following the % AREhBAgHhEE
date on which the dividend is proposed BRHEERDHAE -
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.
(1) Capital reserve () BFEEME
Capital reserves comprise the BEXRRBEBRIEATIAR -
followings:
2022 and 2021
B FK
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARET T
The Group REE
Equity settled share-based #EmA&E AN &
transactions (note 24) A5 (HsE24) 1,759
Avrising from reorganisation PEE/HEE
(notes () and (ii)) (PR &E () B (ii)) 37,493
Arising from acquisition K FE i AR i 2
of non-controlling = A (BRE i)
interests (note (iii)) (19,184)
20,068
The Company RAF]
Equity settled share-based #EmA&&E AN A
transactions (note 24) A5 (HsE24) 1,759
Avrising from reorganisation Bl ZE 4B 2 A4 (P& (i)
(note (i) 139
1,898
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(i) Capital reserve (Continued)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(il

On 18 May 2009, the controlling
shareholder sold his entire equity
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen
Investments”), so that Cabbeen
Investments became the holding
company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

On 23 November 2020, Cabbeen China
acquired 35.67% of non-controlling
interest in Huazhi Development with a
total carrying value of RMB23,816,000
at a consideration of RMB43,000,000.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

25 BE - HiEREKRE m®m

) RFEHEERRE®

(i) B\|HEEEME

(0

(i

(i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the
Mainland China are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-
profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
Mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(w).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(v) Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2022, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB46,269,000
(2021: RMB45,338,000). The directors
do not recommend a payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: HK 3.4 cents
per ordinary share) (note 25(b)).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(e) Capital management Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy which is unchanged from 2021, is to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there are adequate
working capital to service its debt obligations.
The Group’s debt to asset ratio, being the
Group’s total liabilities over its total assets, at
31 December 2022 was 40% (2021: 42%).

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-assets
ratio at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods were as follows:

Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Current assets MEBEE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Debt to asset ratio BREEL

25 BE - HiREKRE ®m

() B/FEE &)

KEIQFHF%I SESERE AN
05 - AEBMRKEE_T = —
F— BRFE=EEFE
EVE  MRETHEEEST
NEHB RZE-__F+=A
=+—H AEENEBEEL
R(MAEBENBEERIARE
EMSLE)BI0%(ZFT=—
F 1 42%) o

R BN AR & B R KB ¥
SHRRNEHBEREEEF

EEMT
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
t=RA=+-RA| +=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREF T
840,046 1,015,673
31,550 27,708
1,538,436 1,892,843
659,574 575,858
40% 42%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and deposits with
banks. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

(M

Trade and other receivahles

Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 16% (2021: 14%),
12% (2021: 13%) and 51% (2021:
49%) of the total trade receivables
and bills receivables was due from the
group’s largest customer, the second
largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

F UAEEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continueq)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group
does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances
for trade and bills receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Credit risk (continueq)

1]

Trade and other receivahles

(Continued)

FHE (@)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

260 #MTANEMEREEERL

(@) {ERERE

U))

The following table provides information
about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2022

and 31 December 2021:

2022
—E__F

Expected
loss rate
FEHEER
%

B R HEMERRE
(&)
TEREIR =T ==
+—A=Z=+—BEK=F
——F+=ZA=+—H8XK
SEEEREERBRMKAO A
BRI E SR GRIE & E
WEERAENEENTER
=SB E1E -

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
REAE FERE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARWTR

Current (not past due) BIER (k@A) 2.14% 278,131 (5,952)
1-90 days past due #EP1 =00 H 5.21% 224,499 (11,696)
91-180 days past due #HEI91 £180H 13.77% 156,844 (21,597)
More than 180 days past due #HIHEE 180 H 67.44% 88,356 (59,587)
747,830 (98,832)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2021 loss rate amount  allowance
T TEHiEIEXR BRERE BHERE
% RBMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
Current (not past due) BIEA (R HA) 0.05% 520,990 (261)
1-90 days past due BHEI1 =00 H 1.00% 83,415 (834)
91-180 days past due #EI91 =180 H 50.00% 526 (263)
More than 180 days past due FIHAERA 180 H 100.00% 12 (12)
604,943 (1,370)

2022 %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

F UAEEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continueq)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past
2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

The Group measures loss allowances
for other receivables at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As at
31 December 2022, the loss allowance
balance for expected credit loss on
other receivables was RMB9,168,000
(2021: RMB793,000) and a charge
of RMB8,375,000 (2021: a credit of
RMB374,000) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(@) Credit risk Continued)

1]

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB132,230,000 (2021:
RMB160,258,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in
case of default are RMB132,230,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB160,258,000).

The Group considers that the credit
risk associated with bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the PRC
to be insignificant.

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

260 #MTANEMEREEERL

FHE (@)

@ EEREE
) BHERAMEKRRIE

(&)
N2+ =A
=+—H AEEE&EZE
RITEHEBBEAAARE
132,230,000 C( =T = —
F: A R #160,258,000
T0) * REFRITEREEE
RIERRESBEE © i
BEBIRITEND  REAH
rEEBFER®E - EIIB
AT AEBETETIR
HEBRZEFRITELE
B ZERTALEEB
HEXB /T BHER S
EAZER - tnHIREL -
AEER-_F-_F+=
A=+ —HAAEAZHNREAE
B A& A R 132,230,000
T(ZE-Z—F: ARK
160,258,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continueq)

(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
lent four loans with total carrying
amount of RMB36,333,000 to Huazhi
Investments, and paid deposits to
Huazhi Investments to purchase office
premises with carrying amount of
RMB38,709,000, the key terms and
maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of the loans and premises
acquire deposits paid are disclosed
in note 13. Based on the financial
position and the properties held by the
associate, the Group considers that
the credit risk arising from the above
loans and premises acquire deposits
paid is insignificant.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk continued)

The contractual undiscounted cash flow and
carrying amount of financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period are set out as

follows:

26

F{E (@)

(b)

mENE & Wb ()

ETRTANSMERETER L

RBERR - TRBENALR
RRIRBESRENMKEEST W

T

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

BNAMRRSTE

More than ~ More than

Within 1yearbut  2yearbut

Carrying 1 year or on less than less than

31 December 2022 amount Total demand 2 year 5years

-FRg —EE MEUL

“B--#+-A=t-H REE @t EEX EER BENA

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR%Tr AR®TR

Bank borrowings FITEH 270,218 275,223 275,223 - -
Trade and bils EHREMTER

payables OB 298,903 298,903 298,903 - -
Other payables EfETER

and accruals it ER 130,453 130,453 130,453 - -

Lease liabilties HEAR 46,948 50,549 17,301 17,307 15,941

746,522 755,128 721,880 17,307 15,941
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

260 #MTANEMEREEERL
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{H (&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk Continued) (h) REIFREBE 2
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ANABRRERE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 year but
Carrying 1 year or on less than less than
31 December 2021 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years
—FR —F £ MELL E
“E-—F+-fA=1-H REE @5t EEX T LAR REMUA
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBETR ARET:
Bank borrowings FITIER 261,174 263,876 263,876 - -
Trade and bills BIRAFER
payables ERER 546,837 546,837 546,837 - -
Other payables HiEFER
and accruals FEHER 95,533 95,533 95,533 - -
Lease liabilities HERfR 41,576 45,013 15,561 15,254 14,198
935,120 951,259 921,807 15,254 14,198
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FUSEREE

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's borrowings and
lease liabilities issued at variable and fixed
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk, respectively.

At 31 December 2022, all borrowings
and lease liabilities were carried at fixed
interest rates (831 December 2021: with
RMB251,174,000 borrowings carried at
variable interest rate).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

F UAEEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
loss after tax for the year and retained profits
by Nil (31 December 2021: decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits by approximately
RMB2,097,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the group’s loss/
profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the group which expose the group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the group’s loss/
profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Gurrency risk

Individual companies within the Group have
limited foreign currency risk as most of the
transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the
operation in which they relate. The Group’s
functional currency is RMB as all the turnover
are within the PRC. With the natural hedging
of the revenue and costs being denominated
in RMB, the Group’s transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.

Fair value

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments were measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

J Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BRI (6)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(e)

Fair value (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not

available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, the Group has no
financial asset and liabilities measured

at fair value.

Fair value of financial assets and

liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at
amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values as at 31

December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

COMMITMENTS 27 #iE

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December RZZBEZZF+ZHA=+—8 ' KRH
2022 not provided for in the financial statements BHMERAIRBEHEORBEITE RN RKED

were as follows: g
2022 2021
—EBE-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Contracted for EET4Y
— acquisition of property, - WEME - M RERE
machinery and equipment 15,882 44,065
Authorised but not contracted for EXAEMERRT LI
— acquisition of property, - WEME - M RERE
machinery and equipment - 44,308
15,882 88,373
In addition, the Group was not committed to enter o REBEWB|MAGR T -

+Z A=+—Hi I Em B RFEBRH R
HfE (T ——F : &)

into any long-term lease that is not yet commenced
at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

28

F UAEEST)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party

transactions.

(@) Transactions with a related party

U)

During the year of 2022, a loan of
RMB3,300,000 was lent to Huazhi
Investments, which was unsecured,
carried an interest of 8% per annum
and repayable by June 2025. The
Group will not demand repayment
of the loans receivables and related
interests from Huazhi Investments until
Huazhi Investments has fully repaid
its loans due to bank as mentioned in
note 13.

The Group leased properties from
Huazhi Investments as office premises
in December 2021 for three years.
The lease term was subsequently
extended to five years. The balances
of the respective right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities were
RMB14,900,000 and RMB17,500,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: the
balance of the respective right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities were
RMB20,200,000).

None of the above related party transactions
falls under the definition of connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EXRBIH XS (@)

(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel b FEEEARHH
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel AEBEFEZEEBEAEM(BHE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the X TFHIFE7TRRENARARIE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 ERMFSFAEENE TR
and certain of the highest paid employees as EEMFIB)IAT :

disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Short-term employee % EE B2 A
benefits 4121 3,876
Contributions to retirement R Rt&FIET S| (K
benefit scheme 133 89
4,254 3,965
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FRREH N B ITKA] (it
(note 5(b)). 5(0)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 77885 E 5]

29

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisahble value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to the industry situation. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s
net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

258

29 EXErH4rtRAVER

et kA e AR REBRE (B
AEERBEARSBURREFNSIE
FAH) REERES -

ERERERNER  FEXTBRE
PR B 41 2 L T BR BA A 32 A B2 P 2
EEHHRMEMBRRESNGREY HE
B BHRAREENEER - TESFR
REIINME - AEEBE UTE
SRTEREY M AR B S R P A &%
REBENHE R fbET

(a) FRHUTEREE
FENAIREREDNBEEER
BIEF BT EE - RAET K
MRS R AETT SHE PR AV i AT AR
$°&i%ﬁﬁ%#ﬁﬁ*ﬁ&
HEBRUMEERNWBELR
ﬁT%ﬁgﬁﬁ%mmE&ﬁ%
HFEHBTEMRRIETE M
HIREREE - REHEATES)
I8 ISR D B F EAE L 17
B0 A <2 BR 2K A BE MURL ] -
VWHEAEENEEFE A%
BN & mERERN AR ER
it e

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for
trade and other receivables by assessing the
ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps
assessing the expected credit loss of trade
and other receivables during their expected
lives.

Bank acceptance bills

As set out in note 26(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.

ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

directors on 17 March 2023.

Mr. Ziming Yang

KR RETIE o

Mr. Ronggin Ke

BEREE R EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TS FHNTTEE HITEE
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30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 30 LAFIMERAEF
FINANCIAL POSITION
2022 2021
—E__F —E - —fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARINRE 14 14,065 14,065
Current assets REEE
Dividend receivables FEUS AR B 88,190 56,931
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEYFE A B15KIE 3,894 3,591
Other receivables H b W 58 274 245
Cash and cash equivalents Re KB EFEEY 152 489
R B 92510 61,256
Current liability REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN DEINGIE ¢ 54,697 24,050
Other payables and accruals H At - 5RIE &

e E A 11 335
R SR 54,708 | 24,385
Net current assets REBEEFE 37,802 36,871
NET ASSETS EEFE 51,867 50,936

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#EE 25(a)

Capitals =N 5,214 5,214

Reserves ki 46,653 45,722

NET ASSETS EEEE 51,867 50,936
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEESER _T-_=F=-RA+tALE
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32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2022, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Ziming Yang.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.
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ME R (1)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UAREST)

RIS EERRR
RZZE_—F+-_A=+—H EFR
RANRAINREIEIR T R KRR E

8E"_ZT__F+_"A
=+—HLFECHEME
RREMAERT « METEAR
RENTREE
HEAPBHRERTIZBRE  BHEEE
AR Ee R BMELIENE BT HE
Al ZFEIRBE_TE__F+=H
=t+—BHILEFERRER - BRAE
MRIWATA - AT AR s AREE
BARZERRE -

FERGFERAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ME RN (4])

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHTTHEHES) - UARBEST)

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 32
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

g#E"2_"F+-A
E+—HILFECH G
MERENBERT - MFTEAR
RENARERE W)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTH RSBz
BN E B LR

1 January 2023

B S5 ERIE 1 SRIBAT N HIBHEES - HEESERRBZHnE —T_=F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and IFRS 1 January 2023
Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of

accounting policies
BIFR S5t ERIE 1 SRIERT A - AI5 R & 2 51 K B B 155 5 22 R —E_=F—H—H

BEBRNER2RIERTAN - (EHEAHBT - REZGTBR

Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting 1 January 2023

estimates and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

S EHERIE SRS - BB B EBREE

BEHILETHESE —T_=%—A—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets 1 January 2023

and liabilities arising from a single transaction
BIFR st ERIF 125K ERT A - AT7EH -

18— XX 5 Y B K B BN RIEE T E —E_=F—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

AEEEFEZFERNERERNE
FMELXZZE - BEBAKBRSZE
TR KAIBEEH B BHRERBRERK

=40
=
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

hFER

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“BCCE ECF i 22 ZE-NF EN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR | ARETR  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue e 1,185,049 1,372,662 1,288,422 1,274,966 1,273,473
Cost of sales HERA (678,055) (743,825) (679,957) (714,875) (694,730)
Gross profi 7 506,994 628,837 608,465 560,091 578,743
Personal protective EWNEZ-e
equipment revenue - 33,865 526,091 - -
Personal protective EWNEZ-
equipment cost - (31,840) (485,189) - -
Other income Bt A 14,084 68,645 84,015 66,777 58,100
Selling and distribution HERNHRX
EXpenses (235,901) (290,618) (201,073) (218,915) (179,423)
Administrative and other TR E & ERY
operating expenses (341,249 (153,589) (239,465) (164,513) (146,388)
(Loss)/profit from operations 45 (&%) /& (56,072) 255,300 202,844 243,440 311,032
Finance costs BERA (21,332 (16,179) (19,307) (21,608) (19,891)
Share of loss of an ME—EHE AR
associate MER (2,991) (1,608) (154) (46) (190)
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ FRHtAT (&5#8) /& A (80,395) 237,513 273,383 221,786 290,951
Income tax expense FriEmRx 5,160 (68,872) (78,342) (63,644) (80,708)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(BR) /&7 (75,235) 168,641 195,041 158,142 210,243
(Loss)/eamings per share Sk (B18) /BA
Basic (RMB) EX(ARE) (0.13) 0.25 0.29 0.24 0.32
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) (0.13) 0.25 0.29 0.24 0.32
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

HFEE(#)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—ECCE I 3 43 “Z-nE —T-\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFTT ARETT ARETTL ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties &ﬁ%% \ 113,242 103,118 103,012 128,753 39,607
Property, plant and equipment %1 ° BT \ 302,725 266,439 205,123 176,016 50,326
Interests in leasehold %%%%ﬁ%ﬁ\%ff E iz
land held for own use HETH 7 R
under operating lease n - - - - 22,811
Intangible assets BYEE 40,734 43320 38,295 33,299 37,393
Prepayments for acquisiton KBRS RakfE 2 BAHE
of plant and equipment - 240 40,213 8,460 1,039
Interest in an associate R—FHRE D RER 119,592 117,145 49,149 49,303 49,349
Deferred tax assets EXHBEEE 83,281 45,596 40,562 32,455 33,257
659,574 575,858 476,354 428,286 242,782
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 381,575 530,955 388,293 383,716 383,578
Trade and other recelvables & 5 R A MR 721,067 711,074 613,346 738,863 506,393
Other financial assets HeRdE = - S 5 60,000
Deposits with banks REEBRB=({EAH
with original maturity R
date over three months ) 145,000 285,000 293,357 303,254 443,944
Pledged bank deposits BERRTEN 72,010 114,143 92,397 119,824 240,485
Cash and cash equivalents & RREFEN 212,784 251,671 529,037 266,992 220,484
1,538,436 1,892,843 1,916,430 1,812,649 1,854,884
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITER 270,218 251,174 93,612 354,737 52,566
Trade and other payables  EARA{BENFUR 523,132 717,325 651,785 591,510 597,395
Current taxation R 31,298 33,306 49,494 46,673 34,895
Lease liabilities HEARE 15,398 13,868 2,903 1,380 -
840,046 1,015,673 797,794 994,300 684,856
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings FITER - - 258,532 - 234,886
Lease liabilties HEAE 31,550 27,708 6,663 6,937 -
Deferred tax liabilties EEREAR - - 63 3,876 4,168
31,550 07,708 065,258 10,813 239,054
Net assets EEFE 1,326,414 1,425,320 1,300,732 1,235,822 1,173,756
Capital and reserves EoRRE
Share capital BA 5214 5214 5,214 5,214 5,214
Reserves 1 1,297,858 1,406,775 1,316,421 1,199,527 1,112,743
1,303,072 1,411,989 1,321,635 1,204,741 1,117,957
Non-controlling interests  FiZ R EH 23,342 13,331 8,097 31,081 55,799
Total equity BiEs 1,326,414 1,425,320 1,309,732 1,035,822 1,173,756

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

264 | Annual Report 2022






EAENERDPERVEI0R
ERES _H26EANBE

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il
10 Cheung Yue Street,

Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon

Hong Kong

MIX
Pagenl' frol

m
responsible sources
waw%(o;; FSC™ C120915

o o o [T AL | =t el VT3
S5 PEREI i E

=

A DESIGNER BRAND OF CHINA

CABBEEN FASHION LIMITED
FERHERQE

WWW.CABBEEN.COM



	封面
	內封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事及高級管理層履歷詳情
	董事會報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	五年概要
	內封底
	封底

